STRATEGIC HIGHWAY SAFETY PLAN 2022-2026

COUNTDOWN TO THE SAFE SYSTEM APPROACH

A safe system is how we get there.







STATE OF INDIANA OFFICE OF THE GOVERNOR State House, Second Floor Indianapolis, Indiana 46204

November 22, 2022

When I think of Indiana, I am reminded of the words from our state song, *Back Home Again in Indiana*. The song invokes images of sycamore trees, the Wabash River, and reminds us of what it means to live in a place of family, friends, and community. A key ingredient to keeping Indiana a place to long for is making sure everyone stays safe when they travel our roads and highways. That is why this Strategic Highway Safety Plan (SHSP) is so important because it lays out how Indiana will continue moving toward zero traffic-related deaths and fatalities.

Our recent experience with COVID-19 is a reminder of how important it is to see and spend time with each other. It also showed us, unfortunately, that even during a time when people were not driving as much, our traffic fatalities continued to rise. A bright spot is the steady decline in serious injuries. As we get back to more normal operations, it is up to each and every one of us to do our part in reversing the trend on fatalities and strengthening the trend on serious injuries.

This SHSP is the place to start our efforts. Throughout this plan are the strategies, projects, and programs that can continue to move us Toward Zero Deaths and serious injuries. To implement our plan, Indiana is using the Safe System Approach to ensure safe roads, safe road users, safe speeds, safe vehicles, and post-crash care that can save lives in the event of a traffic crash.

Under a Safe System, transportation engineers, planners, prevention and education specialists, law enforcement and emergency medical services believe death and serious injury are unacceptable and recognize that humans are frail and make mistakes. To address these issues, safety stakeholders take a proactive approach to implement proven safety countermeasures that protect road users when and wherever possible, encourage all road users take responsibility for their own safe behavior, and implement redundancy checks so if one part does not succeed, other parts will be successful.

I want to thank all of the individuals who helped make this plan a reality by offering their time and ideas on how we can ensure everyone gets back home safely in Indiana.

Thank You Safety Partners,

EMC Howas

Eric Holcomb Governor, State of Indiana

TABLE OF CONTENTS

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PART 1

STRATEGIC HIGHWAY SAFETY PLAN OVERVIEW 1

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY	2
Steering Committee	2
Other Stakeholders	
OVERVIEW	5
INDIANA'S SAFETY DIRECTION	6
SHSP Update Process	
Safe System Approach	
STATE OF TRAFFIC SAFETY	

PART 2

E№

EMPHASIS AREAS AND IMPLEMENTATION 18

1PHASIS AREAS	19
Safe Road Users	22
At Risk Users	22
Vulnerable Road Users	27
Safe Road Users Impaired Users	
Unrestrained Users	35
Safe Vehicles	37
Large Vehicles/Commercial Motor Vehicles Safe Roads	37 39
Intersections	39
Rail Grade Crossings	41
Roadway Departures	41
Safe Speeds	43
Speeding	43
Work Zones	45

Post-Crash Care	
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN AND EVALUATION	

PART 3 **APPENDIX** 50 Younger Driver, Older Driver, and Motorcyclist Action Plan 55 Pedestrian and Bicyclist Action Plan 57 Impaired Driving Action Plan 60 Occupant Protection Action Plan 62 Commercial Motor Vehicles Action Plan 64 Roadway Departure Action Plan 66 Intersection Action Plan 68 Rail-Highway Grade Crossing Action Plan 70 Safe Speeds......71 Speeding Action Plan 71 Work Zone Action Plan 73 Post-Crash Care Action Plan

LIST OF FIGURES

LIST OF FIGURES

Figure 1.	Fatality SHSP Objectives	7
Figure 2.	Serious Injury SHSP Objectives	7
Figure 3.	Total Fatalities Over the Past 25 Years, 1995-2020	12
Figure 4.	Total Fatalities and Serious Injuries, 2010-2020	12
Figure 5.	Fatalities per 100 Million Vehicle Miles Driven, 2011-2020	13
Figure 6.	Vehicle Registrations	13
Figure 7.	Licensed Drivers by Age	14
Figure 8.	Fatalities by Roadway Type	14
Figure 9.	Fatalities by Age and Gender	15
Figure 10.	Fatalities by Month	15
Figure 11.	Fatalities by Day of Week	16
Figure 12.	Fatalities by Time of Day	16
Figure 13.	Contributing Factors Fatalities, 2017-2019	17
Figure 14.	Contributing Factors Injuries, 2017-2019	17
Figure 15.	Fatalities and Serious Injuries 2015-2019 (Percent of Total)	19
Figure 16.	Special Road Users Fatalities and Serious Injuries 2015-2019	19
Figure 17.	Human Factors Related to Fatalities and Serious Injuries 2015-2019	20
Figure 18.	Roadway Focus Areas Fatalities and Serious Injuries 2015-2019	20
Figure 19.	Younger Driver Fatalities (5-Year Rolling Average), 2016-2026	22
Figure 20.	Younger Driver Serious Injuries (5-Year Rolling Average), 2016-2026	23
Figure 21.	Younger Driver Contributing Factors Fatalities and Serious Injuries, 2017-2019	23
Figure 22.	Older Driver Fatalities (5-Year Rolling Average), 2016-2026	24
Figure 23.	Older Driver Serious Injuries (5-Year Rolling Average), 2016-2026	24
Figure 24.	Older Driver Contributing Factors Fatalities and Serious Injuries, 2017-2019	25
Figure 25.	Motorcyclist Fatalities (5-Year Rolling Average), 2016-2026	25
Figure 26.	Motorcyclist Serious Injuries (5-Year Rolling Average), 2016-2026	26
Figure 27.	Motorcyclist Contributing Factors Fatalities and Serious Injuries, 2017-2019	

Figure 28.	Pedestrian Fatalities (5-Year Rolling Average), 2016-2026	
Figure 29.	Pedestrian Serious Injuries (5-Year Rolling Average), 2016-2026	28
Figure 30.	Pedestrian Contributing Factors Fatalities and Serious Injuries, 2017-2019	28
Figure 31.	Bicyclist Fatalities (5-Year Rolling Average), 2016-2026	29
Figure 32.	Bicyclist Serious Injuries (5-Year Rolling Average), 2016-2026	29
Figure 33.	Bicyclists Contributing Factors Fatalities and Serious Injuries, 2017-2019	30
Figure 34.	Alcohol Fatalities (5-Year Rolling Average), 2016-2026	
Figure 35.	Alcohol Serious Injuries (5-Year Rolling Average), 2016-2026	32
Figure 36.	Alcohol Contributing Factors Fatalities and Serious Injuries, 2017-2019	32
Figure 37.	Drug Fatalities (5-Year Rolling Average), 2016-2026	
Figure 38.	Drug Serious Injuries (5-Year Rolling Average), 2016-2026	33
Figure 39.	Drugs Contributing Factors Fatalities and Serious Injuries, 2017-2019	34
Figure 40.	Unrestrained Fatalities (5-Year Rolling Average), 2016-2026	35
Figure 41.	Unrestrained Serious Injuries (5-Year Rolling Average), 2016-2026	35
Figure 42.	Unrestrained Contributing Factors Fatalities and Serious Injuries, 2017-2019	
Figure 43.	Large/CMV Fatalities (5-Year Rolling Average), 2016-2026	
Figure 44.	Large/CMV Serious Injuries (5-Year Rolling Average), 2016-2026	
Figure 45.	Large Vehicle Contributing Factors Fatalities and Serious Injuries, 2017-2019	
Figure 46.	Intersection Fatalities (5-Year Rolling Average), 2016-2026	
Figure 47.	Intersection Serious Injuries (5-Year Rolling Average), 2016-2026	40
Figure 48.	Intersection Contributing Factors Fatalities and Serious Injuries, 2017-2019	40
Figure 49.	Roadway Departure Fatalities (5-Year Rolling Average), 2016-2026	41
Figure 50.	Roadway Departure Serious Injuries (5-Year Rolling Average), 2016-2026	42
Figure 51.	Roadway Departure Contributing Factors Fatalities and Serious Injuries, 2017-2019	42
Figure 52.	Speeding Fatalities (5-Year Rolling Average), 2016-2026	43
Figure 53.	Speeding Serious Injuries (5-Year Rolling Average), 2016-2026	44
Figure 54.	Speeding Contributing Factors Fatalities and Serious Injuries, 2017-2019	44
Figure 55.	Work Zone Fatalities (5-Year Rolling Average), 2016-2026	45
Figure 56.	Work Zone Serious Injuries (5-Year Rolling Average), 2016-2026	45
Figure 57.	Work Zone Contributing Factors Fatalities and Serious Injuries, 2017-2019	46



PART 1 STRATEGIC HIGHWAY SAFETY PLAN OVERVIEW

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Steering Committee

This Strategic Highway Safety Plan (SHSP) was made possible through the help and support of the 11-member SHSP Steering Committee, which oversaw the update process and assisted with the approach for the SHSP. The group assisted in the establishment of the vision, goals, emphasis areas, and measurable objectives for the SHSP as well as reviewed the plan's strategies, projects, and programs.

It is the intent that this Steering Committee continue to meet into the future to consistently review the implementation of the SHSP as well as monitor the most recent crash trends. Members of the Steering Committee include the following:

Dan Avery, Northeastern Indiana Regional Coordinating Council (NIRCC)
Brandon Burgoa, Indiana Department of Transportation (INDOT)
Rick Drumm, Federal Highway Administration (FHWA)
Robert Duckworth, Indiana Criminal Justice Institute (ICJI)
Jennifer Dunn, Indianapolis Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO)
Pete Fritz, Indiana Department of Health (IDH)
Mike Holowaty, Indiana Department of Transportation (INDOT)
Lt. Doug Hutchinson, Indiana State Police (ISP)
Roy Nunnally, Indiana Department of Transportation (INDOT)
Taylor Ruble, Indiana Department of Transportation (INDOT)
Laura Slusher, Indiana Local Technical Assistance Program (INLTAP)

Other Stakeholders

A hallmark of the SHSP is the involvement of a wide range of safety stakeholders representing the **4 E'S OF SAFETY: ENGINEERING, ENFORCEMENT, EDUCATION,** and **EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES.**

Representatives from each of these disciplines volunteered their time to participate in a workshop and subsequent emphasis area meetings to finalize recommendations for the projects and programs in the plan document.

Dave Allender, Indiana Criminal Justice Institute Dan Avery, Northeastern Indiana Regional Coordinating Council (NIRCC) Anna Baer, City of Fort Wayne Sarah Baty, HNTB Subhi Bazlamit, Indiana Department of Transportation Jesse Boggs, Boone County Sheriff's Office Kathy Borgmann, Indiana Department of Transportation Brandon Burgoa, Indiana Department of Transportation Maria Cariaso, Indiana Department of Health Valerie Cockrum, Indiana Department of Transportation Edward Cox, Indiana Department of Transportation **Pam Drach**, Evansville Metropolitan Planning Organization **Rick Drumm**, Federal Highway Administration Rob Duckworth, Indiana Criminal Justice Institute Jennifer Dunn, Indianapolis Metropolitan Planning Organization Taylor Firestine, Indianapolis Walk and Bike Program Marsha French, Indiana University Michael Eubank, Indiana Department of Transportation Amir Farshchi, City of Bloomington Robyn Frazier, City of Richmond Peter Fritz, Indiana Department of Health Jerry Foust, Northeastern Indiana Regional Coordinating Council (NIRCC) Austin Gibble, City of Indianapolis David Harker, Michiana Area Council of Governments (MACOG) Dee Ann Hart, Future Choices, Inc. Marjorie Hennessy, Health by Design Jennifer Higginbotham, Indianapolis Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) PART 1 STRATEGIC HIGHWAY SAFETY PLAN OVERVIEW

Douglas Heustis, Indianapolis Metropolitan Police Department Michael Holowaty, Indiana Department of Transportation **Rusty Holt,** Indiana Institute of Transportation Engineers Mischa Kachler, Indiana Department of Transportation Jeremy Kashman, City of Carmel Dr. Michael Kaufman, State EMS Medical Director Summer Keown, Bicycle Indiana Kraig Kinney, State EMS Director Ryan Klitzsch, Cambridge Systematics Kevin Knoke, Indiana Department of Transportation Hillary Lowther, Indiana Department of Transportation Lt. Tony Maze, Fort Wayne Police Department Dan McCoy, Indiana Department of Transportation Nathan Miller, Purdue University Extension Mark Muenz, Indiana Department of Transportation Dustin New, Michiana Area Council of Governments Ramzi Nimry, Indiana Department of Health Jill Palmer, City of Indianapolis Chuck Parsons, Indiana Criminal Justice Institute Matt Peters, Fort Wayne MPO Emilie Pinkston, City of Columbus Erin Pipkin, Compass Scott Poston, Plainfield Police Department Andrew Reiss, Noblesville Police Department **Taylor Ruble,** Indiana Department of Transportation Jeremeih Shaw, Kentuckiana Regional Planning and Development Agency (KIPDA) Laura Slusher, Indiana Local Technical Assistance Program (INLTAP) Hugh Smith, Delaware-Muncie Metropolitan Plan Commission (DMMPC) Katherine Smutzer, Indiana Department of Transportation Drew Sorenson, Indiana Department of Transportation Jim Sturdevant, Indiana Department of Transportation Erica Tait, Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) Joel Thacker, Indiana Fire Marshall Ron Walker, Lewisville Police Dept **Robert Wilcox**, Indiana Association of Certified Accident Investigators

OVERVIEW

As mandated by 23 U.S.C. § 148 (c)(1), the SHSP is a federally required statewide, comprehensive safety plan that provides a coordinated framework around which safety stakeholders unite to reduce highway fatalities and serious injuries on all public roads. Indiana's SHSP is data-driven and establishes the goals, objectives, and strategies to save lives, reduce suffering and limit economic losses that result from motor vehicle crashes by advancing the vision of zero fatalities and serious injuries. The SHSP provides the strategic direction for safety by:

- Identifying the priority emphasis areas Indiana will address over the next five years;
- Using data to select critical factors contributing to crashes and the potential solutions to solve those problems;
- Establishing common performance goals for reducing traffic-related fatalities and serious injuries;
- Considering engineering, education, enforcement, and emergency services in the development of the plan's strategies;
- Providing proven strategies and actions to address each of the emphasis areas;
- Complementing and encouraging incorporation into other safety plans at the state, regional, and local levels;
- Detailing the process for implementing strategies; and
- Monitoring process and performance to determine where Indiana is making progress and where more effort is needed.

The SHSP is aligned with other statewide planning efforts and provides guidance for statewide traffic safety plans, local plans, as well as guiding the investment of funds for three federally funded programs including:

- The Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) managed by the Indiana DOT;
- The Highway Safety Plan (HSP) managed by the Indiana Criminal Justice Institute; and
- The Commercial Vehicle Safety Plan (CVSP) managed by the Indiana State Police.

Reducing the impact of traffic crashes is why Congress passed and subsequently included in every transportation bill since 2005, a requirement for states to develop, update, and evaluate an SHSP. The law is comprehensive regarding who must be involved, the information to be reviewed, the outreach and activities to be conducted, and why the plan must be evaluated.

Indiana met those requirements in previous versions of the SHSP, however, determined a new, more integrated and coordinated approach was necessary when updating the plan. Guiding this process is the belief that everyone should be able to use Indiana's roadway system with the certainty they will arrive at their destination safely-regardless of whether they drive, walk, roll, or ride.

Indiana has a large and complex roadway system encompassing more than 200,000 lane miles, the majority of which are in rural areas. Those lane miles are also used by more than 4 million licensed drivers who range in age from 16 to over 80. Like many other states, Indiana has adopted the long-term vision that the only acceptable number of traffic fatalities and serious injuries is zero. No longer should it be acceptable to view

deaths and serious injuries as the price to pay for mobility. For those who do not believe that zero is possible, just consider what the individual goal is for the majority of people who use the transportation system for themselves, their family members, and friends. That goal is zero. If it can be an individual goal, why is it not possible for it to be a statewide or national goal?

That is why Indiana used the Safe System approach as the foundation for the 2022 update and established six emphasis areas, and nine strategies. These areas will help Indiana guide investment decisions to implement strategies and countermeasures with the greatest potential to save lives and prevent injuries.

INDIANA'S SAFETY DIRECTION

Safety has taken on a new meaning for everyone due to the COVID-19 pandemic affecting every aspect of daily life, including the ability to get around. Because Vehicle Miles Traveled (VMT) declined during the pandemic, many expected a corresponding decline in traffic fatalities. However, the reverse happened with many states, including Indiana, experiencing increases in traffic fatalities due mainly to speeding and other risky behaviors. Recognizing it will take everyone getting involved in traffic safety to reverse this trend, safety stakeholders from around the State gave their time and effort to provide input into the SHSP.

The SHSP Steering Committee provided oversight and made initial decisions on the vision, mission, goal, and objectives to reduce fatalities and serious injury objectives, which will be tracked throughout the life of the plan.



Indiana subscribes to the American Associating State Highway Transportation Officials (AASHTO) initiative that sets the ultimate goal of striving Toward Zero Deaths (TZD). Within the TZD, objectives are set to help measure progress. Indiana established measurable objectives for 2022 through 2026 to achieve the objective of reducing fatalities and serious injuries to a significant level by 2042 starting from the 2020 levels. For fatalities, the objective is to a decrease from 862 in 2020 to 550 in 2042, as shown in Figure 1.

Figure 2 shows the decrease in the five year average for serious injuries from 3,293 in 2020 to 1,975 in 2042. Specific objectives have also been established for each emphasis area so those numbers can be tracked and compared to the projects and programs being implemented. This will help Indiana determine if the right mix of strategies and actions are in the plan.

Figure 1. Fatality SHSP Objectives



Figure 2. Serious Injury SHSP Objectives



These SHSP objectives should not be confused with the annual safety targets Indiana submits to the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) and the National Highway Traffic Safety Administration (NHTSA). The SHSP objectives span multiple years and are related to the long-term objective of reducing the number to the objective by 2042. According to FHWA, the SHSP multiyear objectives provide consistency for the annual targets and encourage greater cooperation among the individuals working to achieve the Toward Zero goal objective.

SHSP Update Process

The update process for the SHSP began in July 2021 with an evaluation of the previous Indiana SHSP through the FHWA SHSP Evaluation Workshop. INDOT believed conducting this workshop prior to updating the plan would be beneficial to determine the effectiveness of the previous SHSP and areas for improvement. The Evaluation Workshop involved more than 50 participants who were guided through the FHWA SHSP Evaluation Process Model (EPM).

During that workshop, Indiana examined the organizational structure, multimodal and multidisciplinary collaboration, goal, and target setting methods, evidence-based emphasis areas, strategies, actions, and aligned agency priorities. Attendees reviewed current data trends and action plans to determine Indiana's success in meeting overall fatality and serious injury objectives and where they could make improvements for the next SHSP. The workshop resulted in several recommendations which were taken into account in the updated plan. One of the recommendations from the Evaluation Workshop was to form a SHSP Steering Committee. Indiana agreed and formed an 11-member committee whose first task was to respond to a survey asking what went well (strengths) with the previous SHSP, what did not go well (weaknesses), what opportunities exist to improve the process going forward, and what potential threats exist to a successful update and implementation process. This is called a SWOT analysis (Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities, and Threats).

The next step was a performance review of the data to determine how well Indiana met its fatality and serious injury objectives. Several Steering Committee members also responded to interview questions that asked for additional detail on what aspects of the SHSP could be improved and what should remain from the previous plan. The Steering Committee chose to develop the SHSP under the Safe System approach framework using the five Safe System elements as the main emphasis areas. Following are the emphasis areas and strategies for the updated plan:



8

Based on the selection of the emphasis areas, in-state guidance and national resources were utilized to draft countermeasures strategy sheets for each area. The strategy sheets detailed a range of action items, their proven effectiveness, and a potential timeframe for implementation. These individuals met at a day-long workshop to review the ideas and provide input into which projects should or should not be included, and what new ideas or programs should be included.

The strategy sheets were shared with the Steering Committee and nearly 100 safety stakeholders throughout Indiana representing state agencies (Departments of Transportation and Health, and the Criminal Justice Institute), state and local law enforcement, local governments, emergency medical services and trauma agencies, non-profit organizations, community interest groups, transit, railroads, colleges and universities, engineering consultants, and others.

These individuals, along with several others then participated in two virtual meetings for each of the emphasis areas to obtain feedback on the range of techniques and tools available for addressing crashes. In these discussions, strategies were developed, countermeasures were selected and prioritized, action steps were developed to achieve the strategies, and lead agencies and personnel were assigned implementation responsibility for each action. The final action plans for each strategy sheet are contained in a separate implementation document that accompanies this plan.

Safe System Approach

New to the Indiana SHSP update is a focus on the Safe System approach, which seeks to eliminate death and serious injuries for all road users. The foundations of a Safe System are a strong safety culture and a focus on equity. A safety culture, both internally in all agencies and organizations working on safety, and externally with the public, are necessary to make sure there is an expectation all users of the road system will be protected and everyone shares in the responsibility to see that goal is achieved. Equity is defined as the fair distribution of transportation resources, benefits, costs, programs, and services that considers differences in income, geography, ability, and other factors along with equitable access to affordable and reliable transportation options.



The Safe System approach was first implemented abroad and has been linked to substantial reductions in traffic-related fatalities. Countries that have adopted the approach have experienced large decreases in deaths ranging from 47% in Australia to an 80% reduction in Spain.¹

GHSA 2022. Putting the Pieces Together: Addressing the Role of Behavioral Safety in the Safe System Approach, January 2022, Governors Highway Safety Association, Washington, DC, https://www.ghsa.org/resources/GHSA/Safe-System-Report21

In January 2022, the U.S. Department of Transportation released its first ever National Roadway Safety Strategy (NRSS), which adopted the Safe System approach departmentwide. This differs significantly from a conventional safety approach as it acknowledges both human mistakes and human vulnerability, and it designs a redundant system to protect everyone to achieve the goal of zero fatalities. As noted in the Strategy, "The purpose of the NRSS and its adoption of the Safe System approach is to address contributing factors from all angles and build layers of prevention, protection, and mitigation."² The Safe System approach is based on six principles:

DEATH AND SERIOUS INJURIES ARE UNACCEPTABLE. The Safe System approach makes a bold statement that prioritizes all efforts to eliminate crashes that cause a fatality or a serious injury. It is a belief that no one who uses the transportation system should suffer either of these conditions.

HUMANS MAKE MISTAKES. People are human and part of being human is making mistakes. Even the most accomplished and well-meaning road user will make an error at some point. The Safe System approach recognizes this fact and works to implement solutions that compensate for human error or lessen the severity in the event of a crash.

HUMANS ARE VULNERABLE. A human being is no match for a vehicle weighing more than 3,000 pounds. A person's physical structure has limits for tolerating the forces generated by a serious crash. That is why a Safe System designs and operates the transportation network in a more human-centric way that recognizes and accommodates human vulnerabilities.

RESPONSIBILITY IS SHARED. Since there is often more than one cause for a crash, there are also more ways to solve the problem. For a Safe System to work, all partners must be involved and share responsibility for improving safety equally.

SAFETY IS PROACTIVE. Rather than waiting for a problem or crash to happen, a Safe System approach works to prevent the crash in the first place. This proactive way of doing safety can prevent problems or crashes from ever happening and thereby reduce the likelihood of a fatality or serious injury.

REDUNDANCY IS CRUCIAL. Along with sharing the responsibility for improving safety, a Safe System ensures that all parts function; so if one fails, the other parts can still protect people.

² US DOT 2022. National Roadway Safety Strategy, U.S. Department of Transportation, January 2022, page 15, https://www. transportation.gov/sites/dot.gov/files/2022-02/USDOT-National-Roadway-Safety-Strategy.pdf

In addition to the six principles, a Safe System centers on five key elements, including the following:

SAFE ROADS:	Roads are designed and maintained in a way that mitigates the impact of human mistakes and accounts for the lack of injury tolerance among human beings. The roads should also encour- age safer behavior, so that whatever the mode of travel, the user will arrive safely. A good example is the installation of rumble strips to assist people to stay in the travel lane and help them stayed focused on the task of driving.
SAFE ROAD USERS:	Road users are encouraged to always be safe and responsible when using the road network whether they drive, walk, roll, or ride.
SAFE VEHICLES:	Vehicles are designed and used in such a way that lessens the severity of a crash (safety belts are a good example) or prevent crashes all together (automatic braking in the event of an imminent crash).
SAFE SPEEDS:	Safer speeds are promoted in all types of road environments including urban, rural, congested, etc., through the implementa- tion of context-appropriate roadway design, targeted education and outreach campaigns, and enforcement.
POST-CRASH CARE:	Surviving a crash is enhanced by the ability of emergency medical care to reach the injured person and transport them to a place where they can obtain needed treatment, preferably within the "golden hour" following an event. Creating a safe working environment for first responders and preventing secondary crashes through appropriate traffic incident man- agement are also part of this element.
As Indiana mayos familiar t	his Cafe System direction for the SUCD applications reductions in traffic fatalities

As Indiana moves forward on this Safe System direction for the SHSP, achieving reductions in traffic fatalities and serious injuries remains the primary goal. This plan provides the needed framework and the programs and projects that will move the needle in the right direction.

STATE OF TRAFFIC SAFETY

Twenty-five years ago in 1995, 960 people died on Indiana's roads and highways. Not much has changed over the intervening years. In 2020, there were 896 traffic-related fatalities, as shown in Figure 3. When fatalities are viewed over the last 10 years, however, there is an 8% increase from 2010 to 2020, as shown in Figure 4.

Figure 3. Total Fatalities Over the Past 25 Years, 1995-2020



Figure 4. Total Fatalities and Serious Injuries, 2010-2020



When vehicle miles traveled (VMT) is taken into account, the rate for fatalities goes from 0.98 in 2011 to 1.17 in 2020. Most concerning is the increase from 2019, which was also 0.98, to 2020, all of which occurred during the COVID 19 pandemic, as shown in Figure 5.

One surprising statistic for Indiana is the number of trucks registered in the State as compared to automobiles. Figure 6 shows there are more than 2 million registered vehicles in Indiana, but nearly 4 million registered trucks.



Figure 6. Vehicle Registrations



Figure 7 shows the number of licensed drivers in Indiana by age. The largest number are individuals age 55 to 59 followed closely by individuals age 60 to 64.

Figure 8 shows the types of roadway where fatalities have been occurring in Indiana.

Figure 7. Licensed Drivers by Age

450,000 400,000 350,000 300,000 250,000 200,000







Generally, males across all age groups are involved in more fatal crashes in Indiana. However, females under 35 appear to be involved in more injury-related crashes, as shown in Figure 9.

At the beginning of the year, there tend to be fewer fatality and injury-related crashes and crashes increase during the warmer weather months (Figure 10).





Figure 10. Fatalities by Month

Figure 11 shows how fatality crashes are higher over the weekend but injury-related crashes remain relatively consistent during the week, with a slight increase on Fridays. Most fatality and injuries crashes occurred in the mid-afternoon and early evening, as shown in Figure 12.









One of the more interesting data analysis points is the contributing factors in fatalities and injury-related crashes, as shown in Figures 13 and 14, where red indicates a problem area, orange is an area of concern, and green is a lower contributing factor. Figure 13 breaks down fatalities by the various Indiana SHSP Major Contributing Factors (shown in the far left column) and indicates the causes (columns across the top).

For example, an evaluation of the data for the second emphasis area, roadway departures, shows that, roadway departure fatalities occur mostly in rural areas when it is light outside, and the weather is clear and dry. Fatalities are split almost evenly between those happening on local roads and those occurring on state roads.

Another major factor in these fatalities is the fact that the majority of deaths involved unrestrained occupants. The corresponding problem area also shows up for the unrestrained occupant emphasis area where a majority of those deaths occurring in roadway departure crashes.

Figure 14 shows the same breakdown for injuries. As shown, the majority of intersection injuries occur in urban areas, on local roads, when it is light outside, and in clear, dry weather. It also indicates that those most at risk for injuries in intersection crashes are younger drivers (those under age 21) and older drivers (those age 65 and older).



Figure 13. Contributing Factors Fatalities, 2017-2019

Figure 14. Contributing Factors Injuries, 2017-2019

	Urban	Rural	Local	State	Light	Dark	Clear/Dry Road Conditions	Not Clear/Wet Road Conditions	Intersections	Roadway Departures	Speeding	Alcohol	Drugs	Large Vehicles	Pedestrians	Bicyclists	Unrestrained	Younger Drivers	Older Drivers	Motorcyclists	Distracted Drivers	Drowsy Drivers	Work Zones
Intersections	43496	12346	38416	16644	43508	12339	44174	11703		6633	1446	665	112	1633	1453	1018	3459	12657	12890	1592	2783	563	905
Roadway Departures	15376	20532	21211	13908	22184	13703	25039	10880	0		2576	1185	255	1226	487	93	4828	7552	4479	1310	1701	2043	635
Speeding	3040	2516	3041	2403	3446	2111	2786	2778	0	2576		514	97	353	56	7	730	1347	653	213	196	53	150
Alcohol	1319	956	1412	792	736	1539	1834	444	0	1185	514		98	60	44	9	401	215	179	92	90	40	48
Drugs	214	214	231	185	232	196	347	81	0	255	97	98		20	3	1	106	89	40	10	37	24	5
Large Vehicles	2953	3394	1266	5007	4764	1581	4886	1462	0	1226	353	60	20		79	19	645	736	1268	62	410	226	474
Pedestrians	3822	484	2748	639	2674	1635	3404	908	0	487	56	44	3	79		3	143	409	614	28	219	11	70
Bicyclists	1691	169	1586	185	1493	370	1682	183	0	93	7	9	1	19	3		63	164	249	13	45	3	11
Unrestrained	5848	5207	6499	4121	7187	3868	8521	2539	0	4828	730	401	106	645	143	63		2310	1513	234	828	330	235
Younger Drivers	18559	10674	18227	10401	21195	8036	21967	7273	0	/552	1347	215	89	/36	409	164	2310		3394	513	2046	5/6	628
Older Drivers	18613	8344	15312	10856	23035	3912	21882	5080	0	4479	653	179	40	1268	614	249	1513	3394		696	1464	419	825
Motorcyclists	2746	2094	2971	1774	3682	1151	4483	357	0	1310	213	92	10	62	28	13	234	513	696		141	13	144
Distracted Drivers	5415	2981	4436	3716	6660	1741	7184	1218	0	1701	196	90	37	410	219	45	828	2046	1464	141		44	316
Drowsy Drivers	1384	1674	1225	1779	1864	1191	2628	430	0	2043	53	40	24	226	11	3	330	576	419	13	44		110
Work Zones	2139	1463	1121	2470	2698	906	3125	480	0	635	150	48	5	474	70	11	235	628	825	144	316	110	



PART 2 EMPHASIS AREAS AND IMPLEMENTATION

EMPHASIS AREAS

Emphasis areas (EA) represent the key factors contributing to crashes, which, if addressed, have the greatest potential to reduce fatalities and serious injuries. The Indiana SHSP Steering Committee first reviewed the data to determine which crash types and behavior areas contributed the most to Indiana's traffic safety problem. Figure 15 shows the breakdown by percent of the problem for a variety of contributing factors. In Indiana the majority of traffic fatalities and serious injuries occur at intersections (32.5%), followed by 23.5% caused by roadway departure.





Special road users will often require different countermeasures than the regular automobile driving public to address their safety issues. Figure 16 indicates that although younger drivers are involved in the most injury-related crashes, older drivers are involved in the most fatal crashes of the special road users group.



Figure 16. Special Road Users Fatalities and Serious Injuries 2015-2019

Human factors continue to play a large role in fatalities and injuries on Indiana's roadways (Figure 17). Unrestrained occupants accounted for the greatest number of fatalities, closely followed by speeding. However, the inverse is true when looking at serious injuries, where speeding accounted for the most fatalities followed by unrestrained occupants.



Figure 17. Human Factors Related to Fatalities and Serious Injuries 2015-2019

When looking at specific environmental areas involving fatalities and serious injuries, roadway departure and intersections saw the largest number of fatalities and serious injuries in the State. However, considering the limited number of work zones and rail grade crossings in the State there are a significant number of serious injuries and fatalities occurring in these locations as well.



20

In addition to selecting emphasis areas based on the number of fatalities and serious injuries, Indiana also looked at areas where the State had been experiencing increases such as with crashes involving pedestrians and bicyclists. Work zones and rail highway grade crossings are also two issues where there are not a large numbers of traffic crashes, but safety in these are vitally important to Indiana's ability to build and maintain a safe roadway transportation system.

As noted previously, Indiana has adopted the Safe System approach and organized the contributing factors relevant to each of the elements in the approach. The emphasis areas for this 2022-2026 plan are:



This chapter provides a description for each EA, supporting crash data analysis, and the strategies to lower fatalities and serious injuries. Actions, which can change during the five-year life of the Plan, are not in this document, but rather will be included in a separate Implementation Plan. To link the Plan to effective approaches, the strategies and actions all focus on the 4 E's of safety:

ENGINEERING This E involves the design of roadways and the surrounding environment using solutions that reduce crashes or minimize the severity of crashes when they occur.

ENFORCEMENT This E involves the actions and efforts by the thousands of state and local law enforcement officers throughout the State who are working to ensure road users follow the law. Strategies and actions in this area often involve targeted efforts in areas where crashes happen and involve changing road user behavior.

EDUCATION This E involves providing information to road users, through public awareness campaigns, media stories, social media, driver's education, and other avenues, to help them make good choices.

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES This E involves the efforts of emergency responders in providing a coordinated response to crashes and providing critical on site care and transportation to the appropriate trauma care hospital in a timely manner.

Safe Road Users

Safe Road Users is the Safe System emphasis area that focuses on all users of the system whether they walk, bicycle, drive, roll, or ride various non-motorized or micromobility devices. All road users have a responsibility to use the system responsibly and within Indiana's traffic laws. While there are efforts to build, operate, and maintain a system that speaks to the specific needs of these road users, enforcement and education efforts can help moderate road user behavior. Human beings make mistakes, it is also the responsibility of everyone who drives, walks, rolls, or rides to focus on their primary task of transportation mode and act appropriately within the road system design.

Safe Road Users are divided into two groups, At Risk Users, which includes older drivers, younger drivers, and motorcyclists; and Vulnerable Road Users (VRU), which include pedestrians, bicyclists, micromobility (e.g., scooter) users, and other non-motorized vehicles, such as buggies. Younger drivers are defined as anyone between the ages of 15 and 20 and older drivers are anyone age 65 or older. Micromobility includes lightweight vehicles like electric scooters and other non-motorized vehicles. Horse-drawn buggies are included given the large Amish population in Indiana. Following are the data breakdowns for each of these areas.

At Risk Users

YOUNGER DRIVERS

Figure 19 shows the actual number of younger driver fatalities from 2016 to 2019. The white dotted line shows the projected number of younger driver fatalities that could occur in the future if nothing was done to reverse the trend, and what is expected to happen if the programs and projects in the SHSP are implemented which would drop the number of younger driver fatalities to or below 110 by 2026.





Figure 20 shows the same information, but for serious injuries. From 2016 to 2019, younger driver serious injuries grew from 598 in 2016 to 644 in 2019. If the trend continues, that number could grow to 748 by 2026. That is why the SHSP establishes an objective to reduce the number of serious injuries for younger drivers to 601.





Figure 21 shows a heat map that illustrates the problem areas for younger drivers. Areas that show up in red or orange indicate there are more fatalities and injuries in those particular areas. For younger drivers intersections and roadway departures are areas of concern. These crashes happen mostly in urban areas, on local roads, when it is daylight and conditions are dry and clear.

	Urban	Rural	Local	State	Light	Dark	Clear/Dry Road Conditions	Not Clear/Wet Road Conditions	Intersections	Roadway Departures	Speeding	Alcohol	Drugs	Large Vehicles	Pedestrians	Bicyclists	Unrestrained	Younger Drivers	Older Drivers	Motorcyclists	Distracted Drivers	Drowsy Drivers	Work Zones
Intersections	9534	3234	8674	3936	9654	3117	9921	2850		1435	370	70	32	301	151	91	807	12773	1829	212	724	120	154
Roadway Departures	2840	4894	4957	2634	4652	3077	5124	2610	1435		691	104	55	116	48	7	1134	7734	376	82	422	398	80
Speeding	698	679	883	472	860	513	690	687	370	691		46	21	46	8	1	197	1377	99	35	60	13	27
Alcohol	129	96	151	73	54	171	185	40	70	104	46		14	7	2	0	41	225	19	4	11	3	6
Drugs	48	46	51	40	49	45	73	21	32	55	21	14		0	0	0	38	94	11	1	4	4	0
Large Vehicles	342	433	192	582	619	155	626	149	301	116	46	7	0		6	1	78	775	114	8	68	17	47
Pedestrians	359	78	273	80	254	183	340	97	151	48	8	2	0	6		0	10	437	7	4	34	0	3
Bicyclists	152	14	142	14	130	36	157	9	91	7	1	0	0	1	0		4	166	0	0	5	1	0
Unrestrained	1187	1262	1506	869	1564	883	1875	574	807	1134	197	41	38	78	10	4		2449	211	30	190	59	42
Younger Drivers	18694	10916	18413	10588	21398	8210	22267	7350	12773	7734	1377	225	94	775	437	166	2449		3454	545	2068	581	638
Older Drivers	2355	1099	1965	1457	2961	492	2780	672	1829	376	99	19	11	114	7	0	211	3454		47	216	31	92
Motorcyclists	356	189	376	154	431	114	518	27	212	82	35	4	1	8	4	0	30	545	47		18	4	15
Distracted Drivers	1294	770	1120	911	1636	431	1793	275	724	422	60	11	4	68	34	5	190	2068	216	18		4	69
Drowsy Drivers	224	357	213	363	348	233	509	72	120	398	13	3	4	17	0	1	59	581	31	4	4		11
Work Zones	375	263	204	433	494	144	524	114	154	80	27	6	0	47	3	0	42	638	92	15	69	11	

Figure 21.	Younger Driver Contributin	a Factors Fatalities and Se	erious Iniuries, 2017-2019

OLDER DRIVERS

Figure 22 shows the actual number of older driver fatalities increased from 152 in 2016 to 174 in 2019. If that trend continues, the number will be 227 in 2026. Implementing the strategies in the SHSP will hopefully reduce that number to 171 by 2026.





Older driver serious injuries grew from 598 in 2016 to 641 in 2019, a trend that will increase that number to 748 by 2026. The older driver objective for serious injuries reduces that number to 601 by 2026.



Figure 23. Older Driver Serious Injuries (5-Year Rolling Average), 2016-2026

The majority of older driver fatalities and injuries between 2017 and 2019 occurred at intersections. These crashes occurred mainly in urban areas, on local roads, in daylight and clear weather conditions, as shown in Figure 24.

	Urban	Rural	Local	State	Light	Dark	Clear/Dry Road Conditions	Not Clear/Wet Road Conditions	Intersections	Roadway Departure	Speeding	Alcohol	Drugs	Large Vehicles	Pedestrians	Bicyclists	Unrestrained	Younger Drivers	Older Drivers	Motorcyclists	Distracted Drivers	Drowsy Drivers	Work Zones
Intersections	9969	3105	8392	4546	11426	1645	10767	2308		1073	215	71	21	422	204	149	668	1829	13079	304	532	117	242
Roadway Departures	2249	2443	2585	1955	3729	952	3493	1199	1073		159	57	15	201	55	15	482	376	4692	156	174	251	111
Speeding	403	281	284	379	516	166	356	328	215	159		26	21	81	2	0	80	99	684	27	23	8	38
Alcohol	106	79	92	89	85	101	148	39	71	57	26		13	4	1	0	27	19	187	5	8	4	0
Drugs	21	28	16	33	37	12	45	4	21	15	21	13		5	0	0	22	11	49	2	9	1	0
Large Vehicles	590	762	228	1107	1089	263	1094	259	422	201	81	4	5		8	4	128	114	1353	15	74	35	130
Pedestrians	565	79	366	94	464	180	535	109	204	55	2	1	0	8		0	23	7	644	5	33	2	12
Bicyclists	235	21	209	36	225	31	236	20	149	15	0	0	0	4	0		9	0	256	0	5	1	0
Unrestrained	856	804	822	768	1373	287	1347	313	668	482	80	27	22	128	23	9		211	1660	31	82	32	60
Younger Drivers	2355	1099	1965	1457	2961	492	2780	672	1829	376	99	19	11	114	7	0	211		3454	47	216	31	92
Older Drivers	18820	8688	15510	11197	23467	4028	22347	5166	13079	4692	684	187	49	1353	644	256	1660	3454		745	1486	422	848
Motorcyclists	432	312	402	328	666	73	702	42	304	156	27	5	2	15	5	0	31	47	745		25	4	29
Distracted Drivers	964	522	685	749	1321	165	1307	179	532	174	23	8	9	74	33	5	82	216	1486	25		3	68
Drowsy Drivers	192	230	164	249	358	63	373	49	117	251	8	4	1	35	2	1	32	31	422	4	3		12
Work Zones	439	409	248	596	723	123	754	94	242	111	38	0	0	130	12	0	60	92	848	29	68	12	

Figure 24. Older Driver Contributing Factors Fatalities and Serious Injuries, 2017-2019

MOTORCYCLISTS

Figure 25 shows motorcyclist fatalities from 2016 to 2020, which declined 3% from 119 in 2016 to 115 in 2020. If that trend continues, the number would fall to 101 in 2026 but fall even lower to 94 if the SHSP motorcyclist fatality objective is met.



Figure 25. Motorcyclist Fatalities (5-Year Rolling Average), 2016-2026

Motorcyclist serious injuries also declined from a high of 520 in 2016 to 420 in 2020, which is a 7% increase from a low of 391 in 2019. The five-year rolling average trend for motorcyclist is lower at 200 than the proposed SHSP objective, which shows serious injuries falling to or below 216 by 2026.





Most motorcyclist fatalities and injuries between 2017 and 2019 occurred at intersections followed by roadway departures. These crashes occurred mainly in urban areas, on local roads, when it is daylight and in clear weather conditions, as shown in Figure 27.

Figure 27.	Motorcyclist Co	ntributing Factors	Fatalities and	Serious Injuries,	2017-2019
------------	-----------------	--------------------	----------------	-------------------	-----------

	Urban	Rural	Local	State	Light	Dark	Clear/Dry Road Conditions	Not Clear/Wet Road Conditions	Intersections	Roadway Departures	Speeding	Alcohol	Drugs	Large Vehicles	Pedestrians	Bicyclists	Unrestrained	Younger Drivers	Older Drivers	Motorcyclists	Distracted Drivers	Drowsy Drivers	Work Zones
Intersections	1214	483	1193	490	1322	370	1580	117		263	68	25	1	33	9	6	119	212	304	1697	48	2	42
Roadway Departures	489	945	861	552	1032	398	1324	110	263		99	57	11	9	7	0	56	82	156	1434	27	7	31
Speeding	130	113	150	89	162	80	218	25	68	99		33	8	12	0	0	4	35	27	243	5	0	8
Alcohol	46	58	72	30	41	63	95	9	25	57	33		6	1	0	0	6	4	5	104	4	0	1
Drugs	2	12	10	4	7	7	12	2	1	11	8	6		0	0	0	0	1	2	14	2	0	0
Large Vehicles	34	41	34	41	65	10	71	4	33	9	12	1	0		0	0	1	8	15	75	1	0	7
Pedestrians	22	7	17	8	19	10	29	0	9	7	0	0	0	0		0	2	4	5	29	0	0	2
Bicyclists	12	3	12	3	7	8	15	0	6	0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	15	0	0	0
Unrestrained	177	72	193	51	173	76	229	19	119	56	4	6	0	1	2	0		30	31	249	7	3	10
Younger Drivers	356	189	376	154	431	114	518	27	212	82	35	4	1	8	4	0	30		47	545	18	4	15
Older Drivers	432	312	402	328	666	73	702	42	304	156	27	5	2	15	5	0	31	47		745	25	4	29
Motorcyclists	2886	2264	3154	1900	3880	1262	4778	372	1697	1434	243	104	14	75	29	15	249	545	745		142	15	155
Distracted Drivers	81	61	72	69	109	33	135	7	48	27	5	4	2	1	0	0	7	18	25	142		1	2
Drowsy Drivers	5	10	9	6	11	4	14	1	2	7	0	0	0	0	0	0	3	4	4	15	1		0
Work Zones	82	73	53	102	112	42	142	13	42	31	8	1	0	7	2	0	10	15	29	155	2	0	

There are two strategies to address fatality and serious injury crashes involving younger drivers, older drivers, and motorcyclists. They include the following:



Develop and distribute materials to educate older drivers, younger drivers, motorcyclists, and others about the unique safety needs of each group.



Implement programs that address the safety needs of younger drivers, older drivers, and motorcyclists.

Vulnerable Road Users

PEDESTRIANS

Figure 28 shows the steady increase in pedestrian fatalities from 2016 to 2020 which rose from 77 in 2016 to 99 in 2020. If that trend continues there will be 133 pedestrian fatalities by 2026. By implementing the programs and projects in the SHSP, the number could drop to 98 in 2026.



Figure 28. Pedestrian Fatalities (5-Year Rolling Average), 2016-2026

Serious injuries for pedestrians have remained fairly constant from 216 in 2016 to 214 in 2020, a trend that would continue through 2026. The SHSP objective, however, could lower pedestrian serious injuries to 186, as shown in Figure 29.



Figure 29. Pedestrian Serious Injuries (5-Year Rolling Average), 2016-2026

In Indiana, pedestrian fatalities and serious injuries happen most often at intersections in urban areas, on local roads, in daylight and clear, dry weather, as shown in Figure 30

	Urban	Rural	Local	State	Light	Dark	Clear/Dry Road Conditions	Not Clear/Wet Road Conditions	Intersections	Lane Departures	Speeding	Alcohol	Drugs	Large Vehicles	Pedestrians	Bicyclists	Unrestrained	Younger Drivers	Older Drivers	Motorcyclists	Distracted Drivers	Drowsy Drivers	Work Zones
Intersections	1422	97	1158	242	915	606	1175	347		145	15	15	2	14	1524	0	47	151	204	9	72	2	24
Lane Departures	446	70	378	77	298	219	392	125	145		16	4	2	15	517	3	21	48	55	7	25	2	14
Speeding	47	13	32	15	34	26	47	13	15	16		12	2	1	60	0	3	8	2	0	2	0	6
Alcohol	42	7	32	9	8	41	38	11	15	4	12		2	0	49	0	7	2	1	0	1	0	5
Drugs	4	1	3	2	4	1	5	0	2	2	2	2		0	5	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Large Vehicles	58	42	26	61	61	39	79	21	14	15	1	0	0		100	0	7	6	8	0	4	4	7
Pedestrians	4047	566	2908	769	2752	1863	3657	960	1524	517	60	49	5	100		3	154	437	644	29	231	11	82
Bicyclists	0	3	3	0	0	3	3	0	0	3	0	0	0	0	3		0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Unrestrained	125	29	80	47	77	77	130	24	47	21	3	7	0	7	154	0		10	23	2	9	4	7
Younger Drivers	359	78	273	80	254	183	340	97	151	48	8	2	0	6	437	0	10		7	4	34	0	3
Older Drivers	565	79	366	94	464	180	535	109	204	55	2	1	0	8	644	0	23	7		5	33	2	12
Motorcyclists	22	7	17	8	19	10	29	0	9	7	0	0	0	0	29	0	2	4	5		0	0	2
Distracted Drivers	195	36	132	27	156	75	189	42	72	25	2	1	0	4	231	0	9	34	33	0		0	6
Drowsy Drivers	7	4	3	8	4	7	9	2	2	2	0	0	0	4	11	0	4	0	2	0	0		2
Work Zones	59	23	48	33	56	25	65	16	24	14	6	5	0	7	82	0	7	3	12	2	6	2	

	Figure 30.	Pedestrian Contributing Factors Fatalities and	d Serious Injuries, 2017-2019
--	------------	--	-------------------------------

BICYCLISTS

Bicyclist fatalities have also been fairly consistently rising from 13 in 2016 to 16 in 2020. If that trend continues, bicyclist fatalities would increase to 20 in 2026, but decrease to 14 if the SHSP objective is met, as shown in Figure 31.





Serious injuries for bicyclists have declined from 76 in 2016 to 61 in 2020, a trend that would continue to 34 serious injuries in 2026, which is lower than the SHSP objective of 44 in 2026, as shown in Figure 32.



Figure 32. Bicyclist Serious Injuries (5-Year Rolling Average), 2016-2026

	Urban	Rural	Local	State	Light	Dark	Clear/Dry Road Conditions	Not Clear/Wet Road Conditions	Intersections	Roadway Departures	Speeding	Alcohol	Drugs	Large Vehicles	Pedestrians	Bicyclists	Unrestrained	Younger Drivers	Older Drivers	Motorcyclists	Distracted Drivers	Drowsy Drivers	Work Zones
Intersections	988	43	889	116	854	178	926	107		41	6	3	1	12	0	1033	24	91	149	6	20	1	8
Roadway Departures	79	15	83	6	68	26	85	9	41		0	1	0	0	3	94	2	7	15	0	4	1	0
Speeding	8	1	7	1	4	5	9	0	6	0		0	0	0	0	9	0	1	0	0	0	0	0
Alcohol	5	6	9	2	4	7	10	1	3	1	0		0	0	0	11	0	0	0	0	1	0	0
Drugs	1	0	1	0	1	0	1	0	1	0	0	0		0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Large Vehicles	19	4	13	10	17	6	23	0	12	0	0	0	0		0	23	2	1	4	0	2	0	0
Pedestrians	0	3	3	0	0	3	3	0	0	3	0	0	0	0		3	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Bicyclists	1722	185	1618	199	1516	394	1723	189	1033	94	9	11	1	23	3		63	166	256	15	48	3	11
Unrestrained	59	4	50	10	51	12	60	3	24	2	0	0	0	2	0	63		4	9	0	2	0	0
Younger Drivers	152	14	142	14	130	36	157	9	91	7	1	0	0	1	0	166	4		0	0	5	1	0
Older Drivers	235	21	209	36	225	31	236	20	149	15	0	0	0	4	0	256	9	0		0	5	1	0
Motorcyclists	12	3	12	3	7	8	15	0	6	0	0	0	0	0	0	15	0	0	0		0	0	0
Distracted Drivers	37	11	37	9	41	7	47	1	20	4	0	1	0	2	0	48	2	5	5	0		0	0
Drowsy Drivers	2	1	3	0	2	1	3	0	1	1	0	0	0	0	0	3	0	1	1	0	0		0
Work Zones	10	1	9	2	9	2	10	1	8	0	0	0	0	0	0	11	0	0	0	0	0	0	

Figure 33. Bicyclists Contributing Factors Fatalities and Serious Injuries, 2017-2019

There are two strategies to address fatality and serious injury crashes involving pedestrians and bicyclists. They include the following:



Improve pedestrian and bicyclist safety through the implementation of proven safety countermeasures particularly in high crash locations.



Educate local jurisdictions on pedestrian/bicyclist improvements and roadway users on driver and pedestrian awareness and appropriate behavior.
Safe Road Users

Under the Safe System approach, all users have a responsibility to use the system responsibly and within Indiana's traffic laws, i.e., to drive sober, restrained, and focused on the driving task. Safe Road Users in this section are divided into two groups, impaired drivers, which includes alcohol and drug impaired drivers; and unrestrained occupants of vehicles. Alcohol-related fatalities indicate a driver had a blood alcohol content (BAC) of 0.08 or higher. Whereas drug-related fatalities indicate a driver tested positive for the presence of a controlled substance. Following are the data breakdowns for each of these areas.

Impaired Users

ALCOHOL

Figure 34 shows the actual number of alcohol involved fatalities from 2016 to 2019. The white dotted line shows the projected number of alcohol involved fatalities that could occur in the future if nothing was done to reverse the trend. Figure 34 also shows what is expected to happen if the programs and projects in the SHSP are implemented, which would drop the number of impaired driver fatalities to 102 by 2026.





Figure 35 indicates alcohol involved serious injuries have been trending downwards steadily over the past few years. If they continue that downward trend, they will exceed the SHSP objective of 174 in 2026, reaching 168 serious injuries.



Figure 35. Alcohol Serious Injuries (5-Year Rolling Average), 2016-2026

The contributing factors, found in Figure 36, indicate a large portion of the impaired driving fatalities and injuries involve roadway departures, at night, on local and urban roadways.

	Urban	Rural	Local	State	Light	Dark	Clear/Dry Road Conditions	Not Clear/Wet Road Conditions	Intersections	Roadway Departures	Speeding	Alcohol	Drugs	Large Vehicles	Pedestrians	Bicyclists	Unrestrained	Younger Drivers	Older Drivers	Motorcyclists	Distracted Drivers	Drowsy Drivers	Work Zones
Intersections	497	185	476	185	235	448	548	136		202	135	684	27	16	15	3	119	70	71	25	23	3	12
Roadway Departures	535	691	777	415	342	883	982	245	202		308	1227	66	11	4	1	256	104	57	57	54	33	21
Speeding	318	223	348	177	177	363	414	127	135	308		541	46	15	12	0	137	46	26	33	21	7	19
Alcohol	1350	996	1452	822	754	1592	1894	455	684	1227	541		108	64	49	11	430	225	187	104	91	41	51
Drugs	35	73	51	51	35	73	85	23	27	66	46	108		4	2	0	41	14	13	6	7	1	0
Large Vehicles	36	28	10	53	22	42	55	9	16	11	15	64	4		0	0	10	7	4	1	4	1	1
Pedestrians	42	7	32	9	8	41	38	11	15	4	12	49	2	0		0	7	2	1	0	1	0	5
Bicyclists	5	6	9	2	4	7	10	1	3	1	0	11	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	1	0	0
Unrestrained	227	203	296	125	136	293	339	91	119	256	137	430	41	10	7	0		41	27	6	22	9	10
Younger Drivers	129	96	151	73	54	171	185	40	70	104	46	225	14	7	2	0	41		19	4	11	3	6
Older Drivers	106	79	92	89	85	101	148	39	71	57	26	187	13	4	1	0	27	19		5	8	4	0
Motorcyclists	46	58	72	30	41	63	95	9	25	57	33	104	6	1	0	0	6	4	5		4	0	1
Distracted Drivers	43	48	56	34	37	54	75	16	23	54	21	91	7	4	1	1	22	11	8	4		0	2
Drowsy Drivers	22	19	21	19	12	27	36	5	3	33	7	41	1	1	0	0	9	3	4	0	0		3
Work Zones	29	22	16	35	7	44	47	4	12	21	19	51	0	1	5	0	10	6	0	1	2	3	

	Alashal Cantribu	ting Costory	- Cotolitico on	d Carlana In		2017 2010
lure 50.			s Falannes and		IIII III III III III III III III III I	2017-2018
					,,	

SAFE ROAD USERS IMPAIRED ROAD USERS

DRUGS

Drug involved fatalities have been trending upward. If they keep on the same trajectory, there will be 232 drug involved fatalities by 2026. The SHSP objective, however, could lower drug involved fatalities to 177, as shown in Figure 37.





Drug involved serious injuries are trending downward, as shown in Figure 38. The SHSP objective seeks to lower drug involved injuries to 84.



Figure 38. Drug Serious Injuries (5-Year Rolling Average), 2016-2026

The contributing factors for drug involved serious injury and fatal crashes, found in Figure 39, show roadway departure as an issue; these occur evenly both in urban and rural areas and on state or local roads.

	Urban	Rural	Local	State	Light	Dark	Clear/Dry Road Conditions	Not Clear/Wet Road Conditions	Intersections	Roadway Departures	Speeding	Alcohol	Drugs	Large Vehicles	Pedestrians	Bicyclists	Unrestrained	Younger Drivers	Older Drivers	Motorcyclists	Distracted Drivers	Drowsy Drivers	Work Zones
Intersections	71	49	59	59	58	62	99	21		38	31	27	120	4	2	1	33	32	21	1	10	1	0
Roadway Departures	106	169	168	103	146	129	215	60	38		71	66	275	2	2	0	79	55	15	11	20	20	0
Speeding	45	64	60	47	43	66	73	36	31	71		46	109	6	2	0	42	21	21	8	8	2	0
Alcohol	35	73	51	51	35	73	85	23	27	66	46		108	4	2	0	41	14	13	6	7	1	0
Drugs	223	235	244	201	246	212	374	84	120	275	109	108		22	5	1	120	94	49	14	39	24	5
Large Vehicles	9	13	0	22	12	10	19	3	4	2	6	4	22		0	0	1	0	5	0	8	0	1
Pedestrians	4	1	3	2	4	1	5	0	2	2	2	2	5	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Bicyclists	1	0	1	0	1	0	1	0	1	0	0	0	1	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Unrestrained	50	70	62	57	58	62	103	17	33	79	42	41	120	1	0	0		38	22	0	3	1	2
Younger Drivers	48	46	51	40	49	45	73	21	32	55	21	14	94	0	0	0	38		11	1	4	4	0
Older Drivers	21	28	16	33	37	12	45	4	21	15	21	13	49	5	0	0	22	11		2	9	1	0
Motorcyclists	2	12	10	4	7	7	12	2	1	11	8	6	14	0	0	0	0	1	2		2	0	0
Distracted Drivers	16	23	14	25	25	14	34	5	10	20	8	7	39	8	0	0	3	4	9	2		2	1
Drowsy Drivers	15	9	12	12	15	9	19	5	1	20	2	1	24	0	0	0	1	4	1	0	2		0
Work Zones	3	2	0	5	2	3	5	0	0	0	0	0	5	1	0	0	2	0	0	0	1	0	

Figure 39.	Drugs Contributi	ng Factors Fatalities and	d Serious Injuries, 201	7-2019
------------	------------------	---------------------------	-------------------------	--------

There are two strategies to address fatality and serious injury crashes involving impaired drivers. They include the following:



Support equitable enforcement and adjudication of drunk and drugged driving laws.



Develop and implement communications and outreach initiatives that raise awareness and understanding of the dangers of impaired driving.

Unrestrained Users

Unrestrained fatalities have been consistent over the last few years, as shown in Figure 40. The SHSP objective seeks to lower unrestrained fatalities to 207 by 2026.





Unrestrained serious injuries have been trending downwards steadily over the past few years. If that continues, the trend will slightly exceed the SHSP objective of 342 in 2026, reaching 341 serious injuries as shown in Figure 41.



Figure 41. Unrestrained Serious Injuries (5-Year Rolling Average), 2016-2026

	Urban	Rural	Local	State	Light	Dark	Clear/Dry Road Conditions	Not Clear/Wet Road Conditions	Intersections	Roadway Departures	Speeding	Alcohol	Drugs	Large Vehicles	Pedestrians	Bicyclists	Unrestrained	Younger Drivers	Older Drivers	Motorcyclists	Distracted Drivers	Drowsy Drivers	Work Zones
Intersections	2429	1205	2389	1169	2571	1059	2925	708		818	179	119	33	194	47	24	3634	807	668	119	173	40	35
Roadway Departures	2019	3323	3233	1999	2927	2412	3951	1390	818		488	256	79	164	21	2	5343	1134	482	56	262	238	88
Speeding	418	382	534	248	396	408	493	310	179	488		137	42	49	3	0	804	197	80	4	43	19	13
Alcohol	227	203	296	125	136	293	339	91	119	256	137		41	10	7	0	430	41	27	6	22	9	10
Drugs	50	70	62	57	58	62	103	17	33	79	42	41		1	0	0	120	38	22	0	3	1	2
Large Vehicles	273	466	139	578	548	191	519	219	194	164	49	10	1		7	2	739	78	128	1	88	31	47
Pedestrians	125	29	80	47	77	77	130	24	47	21	3	7	0	7		0	154	10	23	2	9	4	7
Bicyclists	59	4	50	10	51	12	60	3	24	2	0	0	0	2	0		63	4	9	0	2	0	0
Unrestrained	6106	5770	6881	4543	7625	4251	9166	2715	3634	5343	804	430	120	739	154	63		2449	1660	249	857	335	255
Younger Drivers	1187	1262	1506	869	1564	883	1875	574	807	1134	197	41	38	78	10	4	2449		211	30	190	59	42
Older Drivers	856	804	822	768	1373	287	1347	313	668	482	80	27	22	128	23	9	1660	211		31	82	32	60
Motorcyclists	177	72	193	51	173	76	229	19	119	56	4	6	0	1	2	0	249	30	31		7	3	10
Distracted Drivers	422	435	406	411	649	208	702	155	173	262	43	22	3	88	9	2	857	190	82	7		8	23
Drowsy Drivers	139	196	109	222	174	160	290	45	40	238	19	9	1	31	4	0	335	59	32	3	8		19
Work Zones	104	151	62	193	168	87	220	35	35	88	13	10	2	47	7	0	255	42	60	10	23	19	

Figure 42. Unrestrained Contributing Factors Fatalities and Serious Injuries, 2017-2019



Educate the public and the private sector on the importance of using safety belts and child safety restraints.



Promote the use of seat belts through high-visibility enforcement campaigns and the proper adjudication of violations.

Safe Vehicles

Roadway safety is the shared responsibility of passenger vehicle drivers, truck drivers, bus drivers, motorcyclists, and non-motorists. Large trucks can often weigh 20 to 30 times as much as a passenger vehicle, requiring a longer stopping distance and greater ground clearance than passenger vehicles. Truck characteristics create challenges to safe navigation for all road users. According to Insurance Institute for Highway Safety (IIHS) research, truck drivers behind the wheel for more than eight hours are twice as likely to crash. In addition to shared responsibility for safety, adopting proactive methods of identifying and implementing appropriate countermeasures, enforcing strict regulations for Commercial Motor Vehicle (CMV) operations, and adopting improved crash avoidance technologies will improve safety for all road users.

Large Vehicles/Commercial Motor Vehicles

Following are the data breakdowns for large vehicles and CMV fatalities. Figure 43 shows the actual number of fatalities from 2016 to 2020. The white dotted line shows the projected number of fatalities that could occur in the future if nothing was done to reverse the trend, and what is expected to happen if the programs and projects in the SHSP are implemented, which would drop the number of large vehicle and CMV fatalities to 130 by 2026.



Figure 43. Large/CMV Fatalities (5-Year Rolling Average), 2016-2026

Large vehicle and CMV serious injuries have been trending downwards steadily over the past few years, however, the SHSP objective of 209 in by 2026 will require these downward trends to steepen, as shown in Figure 44.



Figure 44. Large/CMV Serious Injuries (5-Year Rolling Average), 2016-2026

Large vehicle and CMV fatal and serious injury crashes are shown to occur frequently at intersections and due to roadway departures, as shown in Figure 45.

Figure 45.	Large Vehicle	Contributing Factor	s Fatalities and Se	rious Injuries, 2017-2019
------------	---------------	----------------------------	---------------------	---------------------------

	Urban	Rural	Local	State	Light	Dark	Clear/Dry Road Conditions	Not Clear/Wet Road Conditions	Intersections	Roadway Departures	Speeding	Alcohol	Drugs	Large Vehicles	Pedestrians	Bicyclists	Unrestrained	Younger Drivers	Older Drivers	Motorcyclists	Distracted Drivers	Drowsy Drivers	Work Zones
Intersections	898	821	608	1096	1415	302	1431	287		160	53	16	4	1719	14	12	194	301	422	33	109	29	48
Roadway Departures	339	985	233	1082	910	413	981	342	160		67	11	2	1324	15	0	164	116	201	9	33	109	73
Speeding	164	212	53	320	262	114	187	188	53	67		15	6	376	1	0	49	46	81	12	17	6	25
Alcohol	36	28	10	53	22	42	55	9	16	11	15		4	64	0	0	10	7	4	1	4	1	1
Drugs	9	13	0	22	12	10	19	3	4	2	6	4		22	0	0	1	0	5	0	8	0	1
Large Vehicles	3043	3638	1303	5301	4992	1687	5156	1526	1719	1324	376	64	22		100	23	739	775	1353	75	431	230	495
Pedestrians	58	42	26	61	61	39	79	21	14	15	1	0	0	100		0	7	6	8	0	4	4	7
Bicyclists	19	4	13	10	17	6	23	0	12	0	0	0	0	23	0		2	1	4	0	2	0	0
Unrestrained	273	466	139	578	548	191	519	219	194	164	49	10	1	739	7	2		78	128	1	88	31	47
Younger Drivers	342	433	192	582	619	155	626	149	301	116	46	7	0	775	6	1	78		114	8	68	17	47
Older Drivers	590	762	228	1107	1089	263	1094	259	422	201	81	4	5	1353	8	4	128	114		15	74	35	130
Motorcycles	34	41	34	41	65	10	71	4	33	9	12	1	0	75	0	0	1	8	15		1	0	7
Distracted Drivers	146	285	50	381	365	66	342	89	109	33	17	4	8	431	4	2	88	68	74	1		1	36
Drowsy Drivers	75	155	23	207	127	103	201	29	29	109	6	1	0	230	4	0	31	17	35	0	1		18
Work Zones	204	291	29	466	372	123	422	73	48	73	25	1	1	495	7	0	47	47	130	7	36	18	



Enforce commercial vehicle laws to ensure carriers operate safely and provide sufficient opportunities for truckers to maintain hours of operation.



Educate commercial vehicle drivers and motorists about how to safely share the road.

Safe Roads

The Safe Roads emphasis area prioritizes safety in all aspects of the roadway system, including design, construction, maintenance, and operations to minimize the consequences of driving errors such as inadvertently leaving the roadway. Roadway departure crashes continue to be a major problem on rural roadways, most of which are locally-owned roads, whereas in urban areas intersection crashes are a prevalent issue. With safety included in all aspects of roadway planning, roadway departure and intersection crashes can be significantly reduced on state and local roadways.

Intersections

Following are the data breakdowns for intersection fatalities. Figure 46 shows the actual number of fatalities from 2016 to 2020. The white dotted line shows the projected number of fatalities that could occur in the future if nothing was done to reverse the trend, and what is expected to happen if the programs and projects in the SHSP are implemented, which would drop the number of intersection fatalities to 202 by 2026.



Figure 46. Intersection Fatalities (5-Year Rolling Average), 2016-2026

Intersection serious injuries have been trending downwards steadily over the past few years, however, the SHSP objective of 924 by 2026 will require this downward trend to accelerate, as shown in Figure 47.



Figure 47. Intersection Serious Injuries (5-Year Rolling Average), 2016-2026

Intersection fatality and serious injury crash data outlined in Figure 48 indicates that younger and older drivers are overrepresented in these crashes, which typically occur in urban settings on local roads.

Figure 48.	Intersection Contributing	Factors Fatalities and	l Serious Injuries, 2017-2019
<u> </u>			

	Urban	Rural	Local	State	Light	Dark	Clear/Dry Road Conditions	Not Clear/Wet Road Conditions	Intersections	Roadway Departures	Speeding	Alcohol	Drugs	Large Vehicles	Pedestrians	Bicyclists	Unrestrained	Younger Drivers	Older Drivers	Motorcyclists	Distracted Drivers	Drowsy Drivers	Work Zones
Intersections	43846	12651	38763	16943	43904	12597	44718	11813		6784	1495	684	120	1719	1524	1033	3634	12773	13079	1697	2809	566	918
Roadway Departures	4458	2320	4806	1853	4290	2484	5101	1682	6784		414	202	38	160	145	41	818	1435	1073	263	263	219	74
Speeding	1095	397	1045	414	943	550	852	642	1495	414		135	31	53	15	6	179	370	215	68	61	23	20
Alcohol	497	185	476	185	235	448	548	136	684	202	135		27	16	15	3	119	70	71	25	23	3	12
Drugs	71	49	59	59	58	62	99	21	120	38	31	27		4	2	1	33	32	21	1	10	1	0
Large Vehicles	898	821	608	1096	1415	302	1431	287	1719	160	53	16	4		14	12	194	301	422	33	109	29	48
Pedestrians	1422	97	1158	242	915	606	1175	347	1524	145	15	15	2	14		0	47	151	204	9	72	2	24
Bicyclists	988	43	889	116	854	178	926	107	1033	41	6	3	1	12	0		24	91	149	6	20	1	8
Unrestrained	2429	1205	2389	1169	2571	1059	2925	708	3634	818	179	119	33	194	47	24		807	668	119	173	40	35
Younger Drivers	9534	3234	8674	3936	9654	3117	9921	2850	12773	1435	370	70	32	301	151	91	807		1829	212	724	120	154
Older Drivers	9969	3105	8392	4546	11426	1645	10767	2308	13079	1073	215	71	21	422	204	149	668	1829		304	532	117	242
Motorcyclists	1214	483	1193	490	1322	370	1580	117	1697	263	68	25	1	33	9	6	119	212	304		48	2	42
Distracted Drivers	2105	701	1643	1128	2274	534	2390	418	2809	263	61	23	10	109	72	20	173	724	532	48		16	58
Drowsy Drivers	400	166	300	256	375	191	481	85	566	219	23	3	1	29	2	1	40	120	117	2	16		4
Work Zones	700	218	510	407	712	206	787	131	918	74	20	12	0	48	24	8	35	154	242	42	58	4	

Strategy 1 Reduce the frequency and severity of crashes at intersections and interchanges through geometric design, traffic control, and operational improvements.

Strategy 2 Improve user comprehension of and compliance with intersection and interchange traffic control devices.

Rail Grade Crossings



Implement improvements that eliminate the possibility of conflicts between trains and vehicles at rail highway grade crossings.

Roadway Departures

Roadway departure fatalities have been rising steadily over the last few years. However, shown in Figure 49. The SHSP objective seeks to lower roadway departure fatalities to 386 by 2026.



Figure 49. Roadway Departure Fatalities (5-Year Rolling Average), 2016-2026

Roadway departure serious injuries have been trending downwards steadily over the past few years, however, the SHSP objective of 900 by 2026 will require this downward trend to accelerate, as shown in Figure 50.



Roadway departure fatality and serious injury crash data outlined in Figure 51 indicates that unrestrained occupants, younger and older drivers are overrepresented in these crashes.

Figure 51.	Roadway Departure	Contributing Factors Fatalities	and Serious Injuries, 2017-2019
------------	--------------------------	--	---------------------------------

	Urban	Rural	Local	State	Light	Dark	Clear/Dry Road Conditions	Not Clear/Wet Road Conditions	Intersections	Roadway Departures	Speeding	Alcohol	Drugs	Large Vehicles	Pedestrians	Bicyclists	Unrestrained	Younger Drivers	Older Drivers	Motorcyclists	Distracted Drivers	Drowsy Drivers	Work Zones
Intersections	4458	2320	4806	1853	4290	2484	5101	1682		6784	414	202	38	160	145	41	818	1435	1073	263	263	219	74
Roadway Departures	15719	21459	21830	14545	22863	14290	26024	11165	6784		2686	1227	275	1324	517	94	5343	7734	4691	1434	1725	2063	650
Speeding	1091	1595	1656	983	1510	1174	1204	1481	414	2686		308	71	67	16	0	488	691	159	99	52	18	37
Alcohol	535	691	777	415	342	883	982	245	202	1227	308		66	11	4	1	256	104	57	57	54	33	21
Drugs	106	169	168	103	146	129	215	60	38	275	71	66		2	2	0	79	55	15	11	20	20	0
Large Vehicles	339	985	233	1082	910	413	981	342	160	1324	67	11	2		15	0	164	116	201	9	33	109	73
Pedestrians	446	70	378	77	298	219	392	125	145	517	16	4	2	15		3	21	48	55	7	25	2	14
Bicyclists	79	15	83	6	68	26	85	9	41	94	0	1	0	0	3		2	7	15	0	4	1	0
Unrestrained	2019	3323	3233	1999	2927	2412	3951	1390	818	5343	488	256	79	164	21	2		1134	482	56	262	238	88
Younger Drivers	2840	4894	4957	2634	4652	3077	5124	2610	1435	7734	691	104	55	116	48	7	1134		376	82	422	398	80
Older Drivers	2249	2442	2585	1954	3729	951	3493	1198	1073	4691	159	57	15	201	55	15	482	376		156	174	251	111
Motorcyclists	489	945	861	552	1032	398	1324	110	263	1434	99	57	11	9	7	0	56	82	156		27	7	31
Distracted Drivers	729	996	1076	608	1197	528	1444	281	263	1725	52	54	20	33	25	4	262	422	174	27		15	29
Drowsy Drivers	729	1334	824	1210	1233	828	1765	298	219	2063	18	33	20	109	2	1	238	398	251	7	15		60
Work Zones	271	379	127	515	367	283	536	114	74	650	37	21	0	73	14	0	88	80	111	31	29	60	



Reduce the likelihood of vehicles leaving the travel lane(s) at locations with a history of or higher potential for roadway departure crashes by improving the roadway, the roadside, and traffic control devices.



Minimize the adverse consequences of leaving the roadway by improving the roadside, safety equipment and traffic control devices.

Safe Speeds

The Safe System approach emphasizes that responsibility for safe speeds is shared between the transportation system designers and engineers who design and operate the network for road users. Research and experience have shown that posted speed limits alone don't have a strong enough influence on drivers to reduce vehicle speeds. Road design and management, such as setting safe speed limits, influencing drivers to slow down, and mitigating crash angles to reduce impacts on the human body, is an integral part of creating a Safe System. While designers work to create safer roadways, road users must also be encouraged to do their part in practicing safe driving behavior such as following posted speed limits and reducing traveling speeds in certain conditions.

Speeding

Following are the data breakdowns for speeding fatalities. Figure 52 shows the actual number of fatalities from 2016 to 2020 attributed to speeding, however, the number could be higher as the statistic for a speeding-related fatality is dependent on the officers indication of speeding on the crash reporting form. The white dotted line shows the projected number of fatalities that could occur in the future if nothing was done to reverse the trend, and what is expected to happen if the programs and projects in the SHSP are implemented, which would drop the number of speeding fatalities to 181 by 2026.



Figure 52. Speeding Fatalities (5-Year Rolling Average), 2016-2026

Speeding serious injuries have been trending downwards over the past few years. However, the SHSP objective of 514 by 2026 will require this downward trend to accelerate, as shown in Figure 53.



Figure 53. Speeding Serious Injuries (5-Year Rolling Average), 2016-2026

Speeding fatality and serious injury crash data outlined in Figure 54 indicates that roadway departure crashes are one of the more common factors in crashes involving speed.

Figure 54.	Speeding C	contributing Fac	ctors Fatalities a	and Serious Injui	ies, 2017-2019

	Urban	Rural	Local	State	Light	Dark	Clear/Dry Road Conditions	Not Clear/Wet Road Conditions	Intersections	Roadway Departures	Speeding	Alcohol	Drugs	Large Vehicles	Pedestrians	Bicyclists	Unrestrained	Younger Drivers	Older Drivers	Motorcyclists	Distracted Drivers	Drowsy Drivers	Work Zones
Intersections	1095	397	1045	414	943	550	852	642		414	1495	135	31	53	15	6	179	370	215	68	61	23	20
Roadway Departures	1091	1595	1656	983	1510	1174	1204	1481	414		2686	308	71	67	16	0	488	691	159	99	52	18	37
Speeding	3131	2633	3157	2492	3534	2231	2950	2822	1495	2686		541	109	376	60	9	804	1377	684	243	206	56	159
Alcohol	318	223	348	177	177	363	414	127	135	308	541		46	15	12	0	137	46	26	33	21	7	19
Drugs	45	64	60	47	43	66	73	36	31	71	109	46		6	2	0	42	21	21	8	8	2	0
Large Vehicles	164	212	53	320	262	114	187	188	53	67	376	15	6		1	0	49	46	81	12	17	6	25
Pedestrians	47	13	32	15	34	26	47	13	15	16	60	12	2	1		0	3	8	2	0	2	0	6
Bicyclists	8	1	7	1	4	5	9	0	6	0	9	0	0	0	0		0	1	0	0	0	0	0
Unrestrained	418	382	534	248	396	408	493	310	179	488	804	137	42	49	3	0		197	80	4	43	19	13
Younger Drivers	698	679	883	472	860	513	690	687	370	691	1377	46	21	46	8	1	197		99	35	60	13	27
Older Drivers	403	281	284	379	516	166	356	328	215	159	684	26	21	81	2	0	80	99		27	23	8	38
Motorcycles	130	113	150	89	162	80	218	25	68	99	243	33	8	12	0	0	4	35	27		5	0	8
Distracted Drivers	108	98	79	124	145	61	171	35	61	52	206	21	8	17	2	0	43	60	23	5		5	11
Drowsy Drivers	36	20	22	34	26	29	47	9	23	18	56	7	2	6	0	0	19	13	8	0	5		3
Work Zones	64	95	21	137	104	54	125	34	20	37	159	19	0	25	6	0	13	27	38	8	11	3	



Implement engineering countermeasures and effective speed management methods to reduce speed-related crashes, fatalities and serious injuries.



Develop and implement countermeasures that educate the public on the dangers of speeding and encourage them to drive at safe speeds.

Work Zones

Work zone fatalities have been rising steadily over the last few years, as shown in Figure 55. The SHSP objective seeks to lower roadway departure fatalities to 26 by 2026.





Work zone serious injuries have been trending upwards over the past few years. The SHSP objective of 74 by 2026 will require implementation of SHSP strategies and actions to reach this objective, as shown in Figure 56.



Figure 56. Work Zone Serious Injuries (5-Year Rolling Average), 2016-2026

Work zone fatality and serious injury crash data outlined in Figure 57 indicates that younger and older drivers are involved in work zone crashes with regular frequency in both urban and rural settings.

	Urban	Rural	Local	State	Light	Dark	Clear/Dry Road Conditions	Not Clear/Wet Road Conditions	Intersections	Roadway Departures	Speeding	Alcohol	Drugs	Large Vehicles	Pedestrians	Bicycle	Unrestrained	Younger Drivers	Older Drivers	Motorcycles	Distracted Drivers	Drowsy	Work Zones
Intersections	700	218	510	407	712	206	787	131		74	20	12	0	48	24	8	35	154	242	42	58	4	918
Roadway Departures	271	379	127	515	367	283	536	114	74		37	21	0	73	14	0	88	80	111	31	29	60	650
Speeding	64	95	21	137	104	54	125	34	20	37		19	0	25	6	0	13	27	38	8	11	3	159
Alcohol	29	22	16	35	7	44	47	4	12	21	19		0	1	5	0	10	6	0	1	2	3	51
Drugs	3	2	0	5	2	3	5	0	0	0	0	0		1	0	0	2	0	0	0	1	0	5
Large Vehicles	204	291	29	466	372	123	422	73	48	73	25	1	1		7	0	47	47	130	7	36	18	495
Pedestrians	59	23	48	33	56	25	65	16	24	14	6	5	0	7		0	7	3	12	2	6	2	82
Bicyclists	10	1	9	2	9	2	10	1	8	0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	11
Unrestrained	104	151	62	193	168	87	220	35	35	88	13	10	2	47	7	0		42	60	10	23	19	255
Younger Drivers	375	263	204	433	494	144	524	114	154	80	27	6	0	47	3	0	42		92	15	69	11	638
Older Drivers	439	409	248	596	723	123	754	94	242	111	38	0	0	130	12	0	60	92		29	68	12	848
Motorcyclists	82	73	53	102	112	42	142	13	42	31	8	1	0	7	2	0	10	15	29		2	0	155
Distracted Drivers	170	156	112	211	280	46	307	19	58	29	11	2	1	36	6	0	23	69	68	2		5	326
Drowsy Drivers	33	77	16	94	59	51	103	7	4	60	3	3	0	18	2	0	19	11	12	0	5		110
Work Zones	2161	1516	1133	2533	2749	928	3188	491	918	650	159	51	5	495	82	11	255	638	848	155	326	110	

Figure 57.	Work Zone Contributing Factors Fatalities and	Serious Injuries, 2017-2019
------------	---	-----------------------------



Implement measures to improve the design, operations, maintenance, and evaluation of work zones.



Decrease work zone-related fatalities through equitable enforcement actions.

Post-Crash Care

When a crash occurs, the person injured relies on the emergency responders to quickly locate them, stabilize their injury, and transport them to appropriate medical facilities. According to FHWA, every minute of incident delay multiplies traffic queues by a factor of four and increases the risk for secondary crashes. The post-crash care component of the Safe System approach extends beyond emergency services. Quick response by EMS and ensuring timely care for the injured are vital to saving the injured person's life. Proper incident management is also important to quickly clear the crash scene by removing the road debris and impacted vehicles, documenting crash factors, and providing advance warning of an incident to restore traffic flow as safely as possible. Faster emergency response and incident clearance times significantly reduce the risk of subsequent crashes and can prevent a serious injury leading to a fatality.



Provide education to road users and incident management partners to improve post-crash care.



Improve post-crash care by promoting greater coordination and cooperation among incident management personnel.

IMPLEMENTATION PLAN AND EVALUATION

Development of the 2022–2026 SHSP improved the understanding of Indiana's safety challenges and focused on the steps needed to reduce traffic fatalities and serious injuries. The updated SHSP and the accompanying Safe System Emphasis Area action plans provide a roadmap for effective implementation of the SHSP vision, mission, and goal.

The Steering Committee and safety stakeholders reviewed the data and developed the measurable objectives, strategies, and actions for each emphasis area. As implementation moves forward, these safety stakeholders will implement the plan by:

- Providing regular updates on SHSP-related campaigns, initiatives, training, and programs;
- Tracking implementation progress in each of the emphasis areas;
- Evaluating the effectiveness of SHSP; and
- Determining the approach to future SHSP Updates.

New to the SHSP is an integration with the Safe System Approach and a recognition that Indiana must work diligently to improve safety culture internally with all the relevant safety agencies and organizations, and externally with the public, as well as address inequities in how transportation improvements have been implemented, particularly in underserved communities. To accomplish the goal of reaching zero deaths, Indiana's engineers, planners, law enforcement officers, education specialists, and incident response personnel work together to create a safe and efficient roadway system for all users.

Guiding the implementation process are the action plans that are detailed in the Implementation Plan document. These action plans identify the agency or organization responsible for implementing each project or program, how Indiana will determine the step was implemented (output measure) along with where data for this measurement will be obtained, and a timeline for when the project or program will be completed.

SHSP STEERING COMMITTEE The SHSP Steering Committee will play a critical role in the implementation process. The committee will meet biannually to discuss activities related to the SHSP and updates on Emphasis Area action plan implementation. In advance of each Steering Committee meeting, Emphasis Area Teams will provide updates on their progress and/or provide presentations for the Steering Committee Agenda.

In addition to each Safe System Emphasis Area Team reporting on their action plan's progress and challenges during the Steering Committee meetings, one team's work will be spotlighted at each meeting with a speaker or best practices presentation. Annually INDOT will provide a presentation of emphasis area trends and performance with respect to the SHSP objectives. This update will be coordinated with the availability of new fatality and serious injury data.

SAFE SYSTEM EMPHASIS AREA TEAMS The Emphasis Area Teams will meet multiple times each year to review action plans and provide an update on activities related to each focus area. Emphasis Area Team leaders or co-leaders will coordinate with partners and organizations to track and update progress in the implementation of strategies and action steps in the Focus Area action plans and status updates. Emphasis Area Team leaders are also members of the SHSP Steering Committee.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND COLLABORATION For the Indiana SHSP to be successfully implemented, all of INDOT's partners at all levels of government must play a part in eliminating fatalities. This includes:

- Update their plans, including other state safety plans, MPO, and local government plans to align with the SHSP's goal of moving toward zero deaths resulting from traffic crashes;
- Educate their employees on Safe System and encourage them to be ambassadors for Safe System principles to instill a safety culture throughout their organization;
- Demonstrate support and promote the Safe System approach principals by implementing SHSP strategies relevant to their community's traffic safety challenges;
- Promote initiatives that enhance safety culture by increasing roadway users' understanding of the State's
 most significant traffic safety problems and their shared responsibility of reducing fatalities and serious
 injuries; and
- Support and promote national, state, and local initiatives, policies and safety projects that promote highway safety.

EVALUATION Evaluation is critical to understand what is working and should continue and what is not working and should be modified or discontinued. Indiana clearly understood this issue and agreed to participate in FHWA's Evaluation Process Model workshop. During the workshop, over 50 safety stakeholders identified how the State could improve their overall SHSP update process and do a better job of measuring progress. The issues will guide Indiana throughout the implementation process and enable the State to determine the effectiveness of their organizational structure, whether there was multidisciplinary coordination, how data was used to identify problems and solutions, and now how well the plan adhered to the principles and elements of the Safe System Approach.

As noted, the Implementation Plan includes output measures for each of the proposed plans and projects. This will enable Indiana to determine if each action was implemented and at what level. It will also indicate whether more project level evaluation is necessary if the fatality and serious injury numbers are not moving in the right direction. Indiana will monitor performance and how well the State is meeting the proposed fatality and serious injury objectives. To make tracking that information easier and more widely available, Indiana will develop and publish a dashboard that tracks fatalities and serious injuries overall and by emphasis area. It may also be possible to track information by county.

The plan will be reviewed each year to see how well implementation is moving forward and updated again in 2027.

MARKETING AND COMMUNICATIONS Indiana has developed a new branding for the SHSP and its goal of zero fatalities and serious injuries. This is to help make the plan more recognizable to safety stakeholders and the public. The branding also underscores how important it is for everyone to do their part in improving Indiana's safety culture and helping the State move Toward Zero Deaths.

As part of the effort, Indiana will be developing a web site that provides suggestions for what individuals can do to improve their own safety culture as well as help promote that culture statewide. The web site will also have useful information on upcoming safety events and track progress on SHSP implementation.



PART 3 APPENDIX

GLOSSARY AND ACRONYMS

AARP	American Association of Retired Persons
ADAS	Advanced Driver Assistance Systems
AV	Automated Vehicles
BAC	Blood Alcohol Content
BIL	Bipartisan Infrastructure Law
CAV	Connected and Automated Vehicles
CDC	Centers for Disease Control and Prevention
CMV	Commercial Motor Vehicle
CV	Connected Vehicle
DWI	Driving While Intoxicated
EMS	Emergency Medical Services
FARS	Fatality Analysis Reporting System
FAST	Act Fixing America's Surface Transportation Act
FHWA	Federal Highway Administration
FMCSA	Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration
GDL	Graduated Driver Licensing
GHSA	Governors Highway Safety Association
HRRR	High-Risk Rural Roads
HSIP	Highway Safety Improvement Program
HSP	Highway Safety Plan
ICJI	Indiana Criminal Justice Institute
IDHS	Indiana Department of Homeland Security
IIHS	Insurance Institute for Highway Safety
IIJA	Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act

INDOT	Indiana Department of Transportation
INLTAP	Indiana Local Technical Assistance Program
ISDH	Indiana State Department of Health
ISP	Indiana State Police
LPA	Local Public Agency
MAP-21	Moving Ahead for Progress in the 21 st Century
MMUCC	Model Minimum Uniform Crash Criteria
МРО	Metropolitan Planning Organization
NHTSA	National Highway Traffic Safety Administration
оте	
013	INDOT Office of Traffic Safety
RPO	INDOT Office of Traffic Safety Regional Planning Organization
RPO SHSP	INDOT Office of Traffic Safety Regional Planning Organization Strategic Highway Safety Plan
RPO SHSP TIM	INDOT Office of Traffic Safety Regional Planning Organization Strategic Highway Safety Plan Traffic Incident Management
RPO SHSP TIM TMC	INDOT Office of Traffic Safety Regional Planning Organization Strategic Highway Safety Plan Traffic Incident Management Traffic Management Center

SUMMARY OF ANALYSIS CONDUCTED

The analysis utilized to develop the plan includes crash data, traffic volumes, and population data through 2019. Pandemic-related impacts to traffic volumes and other safety trends make data from 2020 difficult to integrate into this analysis in a comparable manner.

The crash data in the analysis and trends focuses on fatal and serious injury crashes. Indiana defines fatal and serious injury crashes as collisions involving a motor vehicle resulting in death or a suspected serious injury, respectively. The suspected serious injury definition was updated to match the NHTSA definition, provided in the Model Minimum Uniform Crash Criteria Guideline (MMUCC) 4th Edition as,

any injury other than fatal that results in one or more of the following:

- Severe laceration resulting in exposure of underlying tissues/muscle/organs or resulting in significant loss of blood
- Broken or distorted extremity (arm or leg)
- Crush injuries
- Suspected skull, chest, or abdominal injury other than bruises or minor lacerations
- Significant burns (second and third degree burns over 10% or more of the body)
- Unconsciousness when taken from the crash scene
- Paralysis.

Serious injury totals prior to this change are estimated based on the average percentage of injury crashes that are reported as "Suspected Serious Injuries" since the update.

FEDERAL REQUIREMENTS

Federal law requires states to develop a Strategic Highway Safety Plan and update that plan every five years. From the law FHWA sets HSIP policy requirements to include the following for state SHSPs:

- The SHSP update shall be conducted by the State DOT in consultation with safety stakeholders including, but not limited to:
 - » A highway safety representative
 - » Regional transportation planning organizations and metropolitan planning organizations
 - » Representatives of major modes of transportation
 - » Authorized traffic enforcement officials
 - » A highway-rail grade crossing safety representative.
 - » Representatives conducting a motor carrier safety program
 - » Motor vehicle administration agencies

- » County transportation officials
- » State representatives of non-motorized users
- » Other Federal, state, Tribal, and local safety stakeholders
- Analyze safety data to address safety problems and opportunities on all public roads and for all road users
- Identify emphasis areas and strategies that have the greatest potential to reduce highway fatalities and serious injuries
- Consider the findings of road safety audits, locations of fatalities and serious injuries and locations that
 possess risk factors for potential crashes, the cost-effectiveness of improvements, and improvements to
 rail-highway grade crossings
- Adopt performance-based goals that are coordinated with other state highway safety programs
- Address engineering, management, operations, education, enforcement, and emergency services elements when determining SHSP strategies
- Consider the results of state, regional, local, and tribal transportation and highway safety planning processes and be consistent with other transportation plans, i.e., Statewide Transportation Improvement Program (STIP), HSIP, HSP, CVSP
- Conduct an evaluation to confirm emphasis areas and strategies and identify issues related to the SHSP's process and implementation
- Define "high risk rural road" and include in a subsequent SHSP an emphasis area for older drivers and pedestrians if fatalities and serious injuries per capita increase during the most recent two-year period for which data are available
- Provide a detailed description of the update process
- Be approved by the Governor of the State or a responsible state agency official that is delegated by the Governor
- Approval of the <u>update process</u> by the FHWA Indiana Division Administrator

SPECIAL RULES FOR THE SHSP

High-Risk Rural Roads Indiana

Section 148(g)(1) of title 23 United States Code(U.S.C.), establishes a High Risk Rural Roads (HRRR) Special Rule, which requires states where the fatality rate on rural roads increased over the most recent two-year period to obligate a specified amount of funds toward HRRR safety projects In the next fiscal year. A definition for HRRR with significant safety risks is required to be incorporated in the SHSP. Eligible roadways for the HRRR Special Rule include lower volume and width rural roads, which consist of the following functional classifications:

- Rural Major Collector
- Rural Minor Collector
- Rural Local Roads

Rural road functional class limits are defined after each federal census based on land-use densities. The Indiana definition of significant risk in the past, which is based on FHWA regulations, identifies the highway segments and intersections on either of the following:

- Locations above the Critical Crash Rate (one standard deviation above the state average) for that classification.
- Locations above a minimum crash threshold on a segment from the FHWA led Roadway Departure Plan.
- Roadway intersections, geometry and cross-section characteristics correlated with severe crashes, such as curves meeting delineation warrants.

In the future, Indiana will continue to explore more rigorous data-driven network screening methods for HRRR segments and intersections. In the event that Indiana falls under the HRRR Special Rule, the State is required to obligate the entire designated HRRR allocation in the next federal fiscal year. In the years Indiana would have to implement the HRRR Special Rule, the HRRR funds (HSIP set aside) will be spent to implement INDOT's systemic safety improvement plan. For rural roads, systemic improvements that eliminate or mitigate the most frequent fatal crash types, roadway departure and intersection conflicts will be implemented.

Older Roadway Users

Identifying and providing strategies and actions for older roadway users is also an SHSP requirement if the rate of traffic fatalities and serious injuries for drivers and pedestrians 65 years of age and older increases during the most recent two-year period (two time periods of five-year rolling average rates of fatalities and serious injuries using a two-year spread). The Older Drivers and Pedestrians Special Rule does presently apply to Indiana, this Plan includes an Aging Road User Emphasis Area with actions that address the current trends of severe crashes for those 65 and older.

Vulnerable Road Users

Identifying and providing strategies and actions vulnerable road users (VRU) is also an SHSP requirement. Vulnerable road users are defined as non-motorists. If the number of traffic fatalities for VRUs is equal to or greater than 15% of the total state fatalities in a single year period, then the VRU Special Rule applies. Although the VRU Special Rule does not presently apply to Indiana, this Plan includes Bicyclist and Pedestrian Emphasis Areas with actions that address the current trends of severe crashes for vulnerable road users

EMPHASIS AREA STRATEGY SHEETS

Strategies presented in this document are the result of a comprehensive literature review of existing Indiana practices and national solutions. A thorough review of successful countermeasures used to reduce traffic fatalities and serious injuries, included literature sources, such as the National Cooperative Research Program (NCHRP) Report 500 Series and the NHTSA Countermeasures That Work (10th edition) guide was used to inform the strategy sheets. Strategies are organized by emphasis area. For each strategy, an action step leader, description of the action step, output measure, output measure source, and timeline for potential implementation is noted. This document should serve as a resource to all highway safety partners and does not obligate any one partner to develop or implement a strategy. Where multiple action step leaders are noted in the tables, those listed first and in bold are to lead and coordinate the action listed with the other leaders.

Safe Road Users

Younger Driver, Older Driver, and Motorcyclist Action Plan

PRIORITY	HIGH	MEDIUM	LOW	
STEP #	Safe Road L	Jsers (SRU); Y	′ounger Driv	er (YD); Older Driver (OD); Motorcyclist (M)
TIMELINE	Short Term	(1 to 2 years);	Medium ter	m (2 to 3 years); Long Term (3 to 5 years); Ongoing

STRATEGY 1: Develop and distribute materials to educate older drivers, younger drivers, motorcyclists, and others about the unique safety needs of each group.

Step #	4 E	Action Step Leader	Description	Output Measure	Output Measure Source	Timeline
SRU-M-1.1	Education	ICJI and BMV (Ride Safe Indiana)	Conduct a motorcycle safety public education campaign that provides information for both motorists and motorcycle riders and include the benefits of safety gear for motorcyclists.	# of impressions on social media # of deliveries on streaming media	Highway Safety Plan Annual Report Ride Safe Annual Report	Short term
SRU-OD-1.2	Education Enforcement	ICJI, BMV, and IDOH	Determine what information is currently provided to law enforcement officers, front line licensing personnel, health care providers, families and caregivers on the resources to recognize, assess, and report at-risk aging drivers.	# and type of information provided to law enforce- ment, front line personnel, and health care providers reached	ICJI, BMV self reporting	Long term
SRU-OD-1.3	Education Engineering	INDOT – OTS	Develop and distribute materials to seniors on new and innovative roadway improvements such as roundabouts, hybrid beacons, and innovative intersection designs, etc., and provide information on vehicle technology and how it improves safety mobility.	# and type of materials distributed # of seniors reached	INDOT self reporting	Long term
SRU-YD-1.4	Education	ICJI	Promote safe driving to young people through peer-to-peer education programs and other prevention strategies, i.e., Rules of the Road.	# of programs conducted # of young people reached	HSP Annual Report	Short term

Step #	4 E	Action Step Leader	Description	Output Measure	Output Measure Source	Timeline
SRU-OD-1.5	Education	MPO Council, INDOT – OTS and INLTAP	Develop a list of strategies and actions that metropolitan planning organizations, regional planning councils, and local governments can consider to address the special needs of the aging population, particularly the need for transportation options in rural communities.	# of communities receiving information# and type of materials developed and distrib- uted	INDOT and INLTAP self reported information	Long term

STRATEGY 2: Implement programs that address the safety needs of younger drivers, older drivers, and motorcyclists.

Step #	4 E	Action Step Leader	Description	Output Measure	Output Measure Source	Time- line
SRU-M-2.1	Education	BMV (ABATE and one other contractor, Harley Davidson dealers)	Promote and conduct the Basic Rider Training, 3-Wheeled Vehicle training, Advanced Rider Training, and ATV courses throughout the State through partnerships with the licensed Motorcycle Training sites.	# of trainings conducted # of riders attending training	Safe Rider Indiana Annual Report	Short term
SRU-M-2.2	Education and Enforcement	ICJI	Conduct law enforcement training in motorcycle DUI detection, crash investigations, and motorcycle specific laws.	# of trainings conducted# of law enforcement participants	HSP Annual Report	Ongoing
SRU-M-2.3	Education	BMV and ICJI	Conduct outreach to motorcycle safety partners to help promote the importance of a motorcycle endorsement for all riders.	# of partners reached# of materials distributed# of endorsements	BMV Records Ride Safe Indiana Annual Report	Short term
SRU-YD-2.4	Education	ICJI and BMV	Review Indiana's driver's education efforts and determine, through data analysis, whether taking driver education classes positively impacts younger driver fatalities and serious injuries.	Review conducted Results from the review	ICJI Information	Long term
SRU-M-2.5	Education	ICJI	Educate motorcyclists on the dangers of and enforce penalties for riding without an endorsement as well as behaviors such as speeding and/or careless riding.	# of citations issued # of warnings issued	Court records held by BMV	Long term

Safe Road User

Pedestrian and Bicyclist Action Plan

PRIORITY	HIGH	MEDIUM	LOW	
STEP #	Safe Road L	Jsers (SRU); F	Pedestrian (F); Bicyclist (B)
TIMELINE	Short term (1 to 2 years);	Medium terr	n (2 to 3 years); Long term (3 to 5 years); Ongoing

STRATEGY 1: Improve pedestrian and bicyclist safety through the implementation of proven safety countermeasures particularly in high crash locations.

Step #	4 E	Action Step Leader	Description	Output Measure	Output Measure Source	Timeline
SRU-P-1.1	Engineering	INDOT, INDOT Design and Technical Planning, MPOs	Use pedestrian probe or other available data to plan pedestrian facilities such as sidewalks and shared use paths or trails where connectivity to pedestrian and bicyclist destinations and/or facilities currently does not exist. Actions will be prioritized using equity data.	# of sidewalk/ pathways rehab # of new sidewalks/ pathways # of ADA curb ramps	INDOT project scheduling system	Long term
SRU-P-1.2	Engineering	INDOT Traffic Engineering Div. and Technical Planning and Programming, MPOs/ RPOs and DPWs	Obtain pedestrian counts to program signal timing on both state and local roads.	# of roads where pedes- trian counts obtained	MIO vision (INDOT) Streetlight and EcoCounter (some local cities) INLTAP counters available to borrow DNR counters	Medium term
SRU-B-1.3	Engineering	INDOT district offices, Technical Planning, LPAs and INLTAP	Identify Amish and bicycle corridors across the State and plan to upgrade the shoulders.	# of Amish corridors# of bicycle corridors# of wide shoulder miles inventoried	Relevant data sources, such as STRAVA Completion of route maps Periodic survey of local agencies of the need and location	Medium term

Step #	4 E	Action Step Leader	Description	Output Measure	Output Measure Source	Timeline
SRU-P-B-1.4	Engineering and Education	INDOT for education, INLTAP, Health by Design, and IDOH (engineering)	Implement Complete Streets policy early in the scoping process. Make improvements in conjunc- tion with repaving projects with possible improve- ments, such as lowering speed limits and providing pedestrian crossing enhancements (bulb-outs, median refuge, tighter radii at crosswalks, narrowing the pavement width, off-set sidewalks, etc.) and educate smaller local communities on the projects and availability of funding.	 # of newly adopted Complete Street policies reported by LPAs. # of INDOT "right sizing" projects programmed # of educational events/ workshops conducted # and type of educational materials distributed 	LPAs HSIP applications Survey LPAs	Short term and ongoing
SRU-P-1.5	Engineering	INDOT - OTS and INDOT Traffic Administration Offices	Develop standards and apply best practices on pedestrian-focused lighting at pedestrian crossing locations including interchanges.	# of projects programmed for installation	INDOT project scheduling system	Long term
SRU-P-B-1.6	Engineering	INDOT - OTS, INDOT Technical Planning and Districts	Integrate a review of bicyclist and pedestrian needs in all intersection design scopes that help bicyclists and pedestrians cross interchanges and multi-lane roadways.	# of intersections where pedestrian and bicyclist needs identified # of intersection scopes	INDOT scoping records	Long term
SRU-P-1.7	Engineering	INDOT – OTS	Change language in the design manual to install marked crosswalks (such as continental style) preferably at high visibility crosswalks and ADA compliant ramps.	Completion of Design Manual update for crosswalks	INDOT OTS	Short term
SRU-P-1.8	Engineering and Education	INDOT Traffic Management Division, INLTAP, City DPWs, and AIM (City and Town Association)	Increase education and promote use of leading pedestrian intervals in Indiana, specifically in high pedestrian areas such as near schools and universities. Educate LPAs on best practices for selection of Pedestrian Hybrid Beacons and Rectangular Rapid Flashing Beacons (RRFB) where complete traffic signals are not warranted, including mid-block crossing locations.	# of traffic signals with leading interval# of educational resources created	Traffic Management signal timing records INDOT OTS INLTAP	Long term
SRU-P-1.9	Engineering and Education	INDOT Traffic Engineering Division and LPAs	Develop best practices for where to restrict right turns on red at intersections with high pedestrian volumes.	# of best practices on restricting right turns implemented	INDOT Records	Long term

Step #	4 E	Action Step Leader	Description	Output Measure	Output Measure Source	Timeline
SRU-B-1.10	Education and Engineering	INDOT Traffic Engineering Division	Provide design guidance on designated bike lanes at intersections and reach out to NACTO (National Assn. of City Transportation Officials) for information.	Completion of design manual review to integrate NACTO information # of LPAs reached # of bike lanes at intersections	INDOT Records	Long term

STRATEGY 2: Educate local jurisdictions on pedestrian/bicyclist improvements and roadway users on driver and pedestrian awareness and appropriate behavior.

Step #	4 E	Action Step Leader	Description	Output Measure	Output Measure Source	Timeline
SRU-P-B-2.1	Education	MPO Council, LPA's and Health by Design	Increase the number of MPOs and LPAs that develop pedestrian safety action plans, and follow through with pedestrian/bicycling and Road Safety Audits (RSA) in high crash locations.	# of MPO and LPA pedestrian/bicyclist safety action plans # of RSAs completed	MPO Council and INLTAP	Long term
SRU-P-2.2	Education	INDOT ADA Office (Technical Planning and Programming)	Work with the INDOT ADA Office on improving LPA and RPOs education on ADA requirements.	# of trainings, workshops and printed materials provided	INDOT Technical Planning and Programming	Short term
SRU-P-2.3	Engineering	INDOT Traffic Engineering Div. and Technical Planning and Programming	Research and implement best practices for pedestrian crossings including mid-block crossings.	# of best practices identified and documented	INDOT Records	Long term
SRU-P-B- 2.4	Education	ICJI , BMV, Bicycle Indiana and League of American Cyclists	Provide education to motorists and pedestrians/ bicyclists on sharing the road and abiding by the three-foot passing law.	# and type of materials developed # of materials distributed	Bicycle Indiana and League of American Cyclists Records	Short term
SRU-P-B- 2.5	Education	BMV, ICJI and Bicycle Indiana	Assist the BMV with an update of Drivers Manual and include bicycle/pedestrian and vehicle interactions, and micro mobility.	# of bicycle and pedestrian updates included Driver's Manual updated	BMV Records	Medium term
SRU-P-B- 2.6	Education	Bicycle Indiana, Health by Design	Increase the collection of pedestrian- and bicy- cle-specific data including near misses. https://closecalldatabase.com	# of pedestrian and bicycle near misses# of methods to collect near miss data	Bicycle Indiana Records	Long term

PART 3 APPENDIX

Safe Road User

Impaired Driving Action Plan

PRIORITY	HIGH	MEDIUM	LOW
STEP #	Safe Road l	Jsers (SRU); Ir	mpaired Dri
TIMELINE	Short term ((1 to 2 years); I	Medium ter

Impaired	Driving Act	ion Plan								
PRIORITY	HIGH	MEDIUM	LOW							
STEP #	Safe Road	Users (SRU); Impa	ired Driving (ID)							
TIMELINE	IMELINE Short term (1 to 2 years); Medium term (2 to 3 years); Long term (3 to 5 years); Ongoing									
STRATEGY 1	I: Support ec	uitable enforceme	nt and adjudication of drunk and drugged drivi	ng laws.						
Step #	4 E	Action Step Leader	Description	Output Measure	Output Measure Source	Timeline				
SRU-ID-1.1	Education	ICJI and JOL	Train court staff on the planning and design of an OWI court and implement one in the appropriate jurisdiction.	# of cases through OWI courts # of OWI courts created	Indiana Supreme Court	Long term				
SRU-ID-1.2	Enforcement and Education	ICJI – Law Enforcement Liaisons	Conduct impaired driving high visibility enforcement (HVE) campaigns supported with a comprehensive media plan.	The number of HVE patrols that occur # of media impressions	Grantee reporting Media reports	Ongoing				
SRU-ID-1.3	Enforcement and Education	Prosecuting Attorneys Council	Provide training and education to prosecutors on how to prosecute impaired driving offenses utilizing Traffic Safety Resource Prosecutor.	# of trainings conducted # of attendees	Intelgrant reporting system	Ongoing				
SRU-ID-1.4	Education	ICJI	Train law enforcement officers to become qualified phlebotomists to collect blood samples of suspected impaired drivers and educate prosecutors of the program.	# of trained law enforcement phlebotomists# of counties with law enforcement phlebotomists	Highway Safety Annual Report	Long term				
SRU-ID-1.5	Education	ICJI	Conduct a Judicial Outreach education effort to provide instruction and training on Indiana's ignition interlock and impaired driving laws.	# of judges reached# of judicial staff reached	Highway Safety Annual Report	Long term				
SRU-ID-1.6	Enforcement	ICJI	Increase enforcement of drugged driving offenses.	# of samples submitted to lab for analysis	Highway Safety Annual Report	Ongoing				
SRU-ID-1.7	Education	ICJI	Increase training for law enforcement officers on Advanced Roadside Impaired Driving Enforcement (ARIDE), Drug Recognition Experts (DRE), Stan- dardized Field Sobriety Training (SFST), Advanced DUI courses, and breath alcohol test operators.	# of officers trained in each of the areas	Highway Safety Annual Report	Ongoing				

STRATEGY 2: Develop and implement communications and outreach initiatives that raise awareness and understanding of the dangers of impaired driving.

Step #	4 E	Action Step Leader	Description	Output Measure	Output Measure Source	Timeline
SRU-ID-2.1	Education	IDOH - Office of Minority Health	Identify new stakeholders to conduct alcohol and drug impaired driving programs in underserved communities.	# of stakeholders identified	IDOH Records	Long term
SRU-ID-2.2	Education	ICJI and Excise Police	Integrate Ride Share program into alcohol server and seller training to on- and off-premise establish- ments, whether classroom or on-line training.	# of server trainings# of seller trainings# of Safe Rides provided via grant program	Highway Safety Annual Report	Long term
SRU-ID-2.3	Education and Enforcement	ICJI	Conduct a public education, awareness and enforcement distracted driving campaign to raise awareness on the dangers of distracted driving.	# of Hands Free Indiana impressions	Highway Safety Annual Report	Short term
SRU-ID-2.4	Education	ICJI and IDOH - Office of Behavioral Health	Provide education about the dangers of prescrip- tion and OTC drugs on safe driving ability to older drivers and caretakers.	# of presentations # of participants	Highway Safety Annual Report IDOH Records	Long term

PART 3 APPENDIX

Safe Road Users

Occupant Protection Action Plan

PRIORITY	HIGH	MEDIUM	LOW	
STEP #	Safe Road U	lsers (SRU); C	Occupant Pr	otection (OP)
TIMELINE	Short term (1 to 2 years);	Medium teri	n (2 to 3 years); Long term (3 to 5 years); Ongoing

STRATEGY 1: Educate the public and the private sector on the importance of using safety belts and child safety restraints.

Step #	4 E	Action Step Leader	Description	Output Measure	Output Measure Source	Timeline
SRU-OP-1.1	Education	ICJI and IDOH	Conduct seat belt educational and awareness campaigns to educate the public on the importance of using seat belts and child restraints and include social media and messaging to reach diverse populations and areas of need communities.	 # of restrained crashes involving diverse popula- tions (data from DOH) # of media impressions # of materials distributed 	Highway Safety Annual Report IDOH data	Long term
SRU-OP-1.2	Education	ICJI	Utilize data to determine which population groups are choosing not to wear seat belts and target them with education and media.	# of impressions in zip codes based on these population groups	Highway Safety Annual Report	Short term
SRU-OP-1.3	Education	ICJI	Conduct child passenger safety training of new technicians, with a focus of training law enforcement and fire personnel.	# of technicians trained# of technicians retained	Highway Safety Annual Report	Ongoing
SRU-OP-1.4	Education	ILJI	Arrange for child restraint system inspection stations with increased access in underserved areas.	# of CPS stations # of CPS stations added in underserved areas	Highway Safety Annual Report	Ongoing
SRU-OP-1.5	Education	ICJI and IDOH	Conduct child safety seat checks across the State providing statewide access to child safety restraints to eligible parents/guardians at free or reduced cost, especially in areas of need to include diverse and underserved communities.	# of CPS checks conducted # of individuals reached	Highway Safety Annual Report	Ongoing
SRU-OP-1.6	Education	BMV	Identify data to initiate the education process to novice drivers through driver's education and the Driver's Manual about the importance of wearing seat belts in all seating locations on every trip.	Review of data of younger drivers seating position and restraint use who are involved in crashes	ICJI – Traffic Safety Fact Sheets	Ongoing

STRATEGY 2: Promote the use of seat belts through high-visibility enforcement campaigns and the proper adjudication of violations.

Step #	4 E	Action Step Leader	Description	Output Measure	Output Measure Source	Timeline
SRU-OP-2.1	Enforcement and Education	ICJI	Conduct at least two statewide, high visibility seat belt enforcement campaigns with supporting media to educate the public on the importance of using safety belts during the day and nighttime hours and include a statewide observational pre- and post-survey.	Pre- and post-surveys Conducting of HVE campaigns	Highway Safety Annual Report	Ongoing
SRU-OP-2.2	Education and Enforcement	ICJI – LELS	Educate law enforcement agencies to conduct and enforce occupant protection laws.	# of counties that have an improved unre- strained crash rate Observed occupant protection rate	Highway Safety Annual Report Observational seat belt survey	Ongoing
SRU-OP-2.3	Education and Enforcement	ICJI and DOH	Increase penalties for non-seat belt use by reexamining the amount of the fine, increasing court costs, or adding a point to the driver's license and strengthen the consequences when parents do not restrain their children, i.e., child endangerment.	Submit legislation proposal that would change seat belt penalty	ICJI Information	Long term

Safe Vehicles

PRIORITY	HIGH	MEDIUM	LOW							
STEP #	Safe Vehicle	es (SV); Comn	nercial Moto	r Vehicles	(CMV)					
TIMELINE	Short term ((1 to 2 years);	Medium teri	n (2 to 3 y	ears); Loi	ng term	n (3 to	5 years	s); Ong	oing

STRATEGY 1: Enforce commercial vehicle laws to ensure carriers operate safely and provide sufficient opportunities for truckers to maintain hours of operation.

Step #	4 E	Action Step Leader	Description	Output Measure	Output Measure Source	Timeline
SV-CMV-1.1	Enforcement	ISP – Motor Carrier Division	Identify opportunities for the presence of law enforcement officers in high crash areas where there have been speed, equipment, and weight enforcement violations.	# of opportunities identified # of law enforcement officers participating	Commander Reports	Short term
SV-CMV-1.2	Enforcement	ISP – Motor Carrier Division	Continue the safety compliance reviews of high-risk carriers and educate new entrants on compliance requirements.	# of compliance reviews conducted # of new entrants reached	ISP Safety Compliance Review Squad	Short term
SV-CMV-1.3	Engineering	INDOT Facilities Management Office and TMC	Look for opportunities to provide additional truck parking facilities along highways, and additional information systems to inform truck drivers of available spaces.	# of parking facilities # of interactive signs	INDOT Records	Long term

Strategy 2:	Educate commercial	vehicle drivers and	motorists about h	low to safely share the road.
U				5

Step #	4 E	Action Step Leader	Description	Output Measure	Output Measure Source	Timeline
SV-CMV-2.1	Education	INLTAP and IMTA Indiana Motor Truck Assn.	Expand education efforts to local jurisdictions on the effects of fatigue, distraction, and commercial vehicle hours of service as well as speed and use of safety belts.	# of local jurisdictions reached # of local commercial vehicle drivers reached	INLTAP Records	Short term
SV-CMV-2.2	Education	ICJI	Educate motorists, particularly younger drivers, about how to interact and drive in proximity to commercial vehicles, buses, heavy trucks.	# of media impressions # of young people reached	HSP Annual Report	Short term
SV-CMV-2.3	Education	ISP	Provide education to local law enforcement on information provided by ISP on CMV violations.	# of pamphlets/ materials distributed	ISP information	Long term

Safe Roads

Roadway Departure Action Plan

PRIORITY	HIGH	MEDIUM	LOW					
STEP #	Safe Roads (SR); Roadway Departure (RD)							
TIMELINE	Short term (1 to 2 years); Medium term (2 to 3 years); Long term (3 to 5 years); Ongoing							

STRATEGY 1: Reduce the likelihood of vehicles leaving the travel lane(s) at locations with a history of or higher potential for roadway departure crashes by improving the roadway, the roadside, and traffic control devices.

Step #	4 E	Action Step Leader	Description	Output Measure	Output Measure Source	Timeline
SR-RD-1.1	Engineering	INDOT – OTS and District Traffic and Pavement Engineering Offices	Systematically install longitudinal, shoulder and centerline rumble strips to alert distracted, drowsy, or otherwise inattentive drivers who drift from their lane and reduce the risk of roadway departure crashes; encourage local agencies implement them particularly on high-speed local roads with sufficient width.	# of road miles with rumble strips (centerline or edgeline)# of local agencies implementing rumble strips with federal aid funding	Finance office safety improve- ments tracking tool Pavement Condition Tracking inventory	Ongoing
SR-RD-1.2	Engineering	INDOT - OTS, Traffic Administra- tion and Standards Office	Review design manual requirements for paving projects at curves to correct existing superelevation, when to use high friction surface treatments, and to develop a mechanism for replacement.	Completion of design manual review # of paving projects that include curve safety mitigation improvements	Design Manual INDOT project scoping reports	Short term
SR-RD-1.3	Engineering	INDOT - OTS and Traffic Administra- tion and Standards Office	Review shoulder width in the design manual regarding average annual daily traffic (AADT) site conditions, and speed and require upgrades for certain paving project types.	Change in Indiana Design Manual to include these requirements	Design Manual	Long term
SR-RD-1.4	Education	ICJI	Educate younger drivers on the dangers of speeding and the consequences if the vehicle leaves the travel lane.	# of outreach sessions conducted (Rules of the Road program) # of social media contacts	Grant reports Social media reports	Short term
Step #	4 E	Action Step Leader	Description	Output Measure	Output Measure Source	Timeline
-----------	------------------------------	--	---	--	---	-----------
SR-RD-1.5	Engineering and Education	INDOT and INLTAP	Provide training to local agencies on the benefit of installing retroreflective signing and pavement markings to reduce the risk of roadway departure crashes, and installing high friction surfacing, particularly at curves.	# of local agencies that have implemented retroreflective signing and high friction surfacing	Safety project information Survey to local agencies HSIP reports	Ongoing
SR-RD-1.6	Engineering and Education	INDOT and Traffic Administration	Implement policy for enhanced delineation treatments to alert drivers to the direction and sharpness of upcoming curves and to drive at appropriate speed	# of enhanced delineation treatments implemented Policy implemented	Published policy document on INDOT web site District staff reports on treatments implemented	Ongoing
SR-RD-1.7	Education	INLTAP, INDOT – OTS and Traffic Administration Office	Educate local agencies on wider edge lines to enhance the visibility of travel lane boundaries compared to traditional edge lines and provide HSIP funding when possible. (INDOT and INLTAP)	# of local agencies contacted # of local agencies receiving HSIP funds	INLTAP reports	Long term
SR-RD-1.8	Engineering and Education	INLTAP and INDOT OTS	Implement the SafetyEdge SM technology to shape the edge of the pavement at approximately 30 degrees from the pavement cross slope during the paving process on local roads.	# of localities that implement SafetyEdge ^s M	Survey of the counties	Ongoing

STRATEGY 2: Minimize the adverse consequences of leaving the roadway by improving the roadside, safety equipment and traffic control devices.

Step #	4 E	Action Step Leader	Description	Output Measure	Output Measure Source	Timeline
SR-RD-2.1	Engineering Education	INDOT – OTS, Districts and INLTAP	Install median barrier systems, i.e., crash attenua- tors, guardrail end-treatments, etc., increase the use of cable barrier systems on non-interstate divided highways, and educate locals on the availability of HSIP funds for these improvements.	# of locals reached # of barriers placed on non-interstate routes	INDOT project records	Ongoing
SR-RD-2.2	Engineering Education	INDOT - OTS and Districts	Conduct data analysis project to examine lane departure crashes involving roadside hazards (utility poles, trees, etc.), and educate locals on removing obstacles in the clear zone.	Completion of analysis project # of roadside hazards identified	INDOT posting of results	Long term
SR-RD-2.3	Engineering	INDOT Mainte- nance, Local agency maintenance	Conduct maintenance of roadside trees in clear zone especially as they age and grow larger.	Updated maintenance guidelines	INDOT maintenance records	Ongoing

Safe Roads

Intersection Action Plan

PRIORITY	HIGH	MEDIUM	LOW
STEP #	Safe Roads	(SR); Intersec	tion (I)
TIMELINE	Short term ((1 to 2 years); I	Medium ter

STRATEGY 1: Reduce the frequency and severity of crashes at intersections and interchanges through geometric design, traffic control, and operational improvements.

Step #	4 E	Action Step Leader	Description	Output Measure	Output Data Source	Timeline
SR-I-1.1	Engineering/ Education	INDOT - Traffic Engineering Division and INLTAP	Redesign intersections to reduce conflicts: Require consideration of innovative intersection types, by use of the INDOT Intersection Selection Guide (ICE Policy). Educate local agencies on alternative designs (restricted crossing and median U-turns, and roundabouts).	# of local, regional agencies that implement alternative intersections	Survey of LPAs to determine how many they have implemented	Long term
SR-I-1.2	Engineering	INDOT – OTS	Update the design manual to show that the IDG/ ICE (Intersection Control Evaluation) policy must be followed for new construction, reconstruction or when an intersection is impacted.	Manual updated	Design manual changes published	Short term
SR-I-1.3	Engineering	INDOT - Traffic Engineering Division	Update the design manual to show that new construction and reconstruction consider installing access control based on AADT/ speed / driveway density; and implement a corridor access management program that takes into account the design, application, and control of entry and exit points.	Manual is updated # of road diets # of revised access management programs	INDOT OTS Records	Long term
SR-I-1.4	Engineering and Education	INLTAP and INDOT – OTS	Enable use of Indiana crash data by local agencies. Increase the number of local agencies with staff passwords to the ARIES Crash Data Portal.	# of local agencies with personnel with access to receiving data	OTS Records	Ongoing

Step #	4 E	Action Step Leader	Description	Output Measure	Output Data Source	Timeline
SR-I-1.5	Engineering	INDOT – OTS and INLTAP	Deploy a package of multiple low-cost countermea- sures to local agencies, including enhanced signing, pavement markings, and lighting, at a large number of stop-controlled intersections to increase driver awareness and recognition of the intersections and potential conflicts.	# of low cost counter- measures implemented# of stop controlled inter- sections improved	INDOT project records	Ongoing
SR-I-1.6	Engineering	INDOT – Traffic Engineering	Provide guidance on how to mitigate for site distance at intersections particularly at hills.	# of intersections improved	INDOT project records	Short term

STRATEGY 2: Improve user comprehension of and compliance with intersection and interchange traffic control devices.

Step #	4 E	Action Step Leader	Description	Output Measure	Output Data Source	Timeline
SR-I-2.1	Engineering and Enforce- ment	INDOT - Legisla- tive proposal	Propose legislative action to allow red light running enforcement.	Legislation proposed	Passed legislation	Short Term
SR-I-2.2	Engineering and Education	INDOT - OTS and Local agencies	Promote local use of INDOT Standard signal heads by providing HSIP funding to projects to install backplates equipped with retroreflective borders to make them more visible and conspicuous in both daytime and nighttime conditions, and encourage local agencies to do the same.	# of projects	INDOT HSIP project records	Ongoing
SR-I-2.3	Education	INDOT, Traffic Management Division and INLTAP	Improve signal timing by adding protected left-turn phases, improving clearance intervals, etc., time the yellow change interval to the appropriate length, and educate local agencies on using these procedures.	# of locations/agencies that complete this work	INDOT Traffic Management Division INLTAP – survey of local agencies	Long Term
SR-I-2.4	Engineering and Education	INLTAP and MPOs	Encourage technologies that warn drivers of potential conflicts and/or assist them in choosing appropriate gaps in traffic at intersections, and encourage local agencies to do the same.	# and type of materials developed # and type of materials distributed	INLTAP and MPO records – survey of local agencies	Short Term

Safe Roads

Rail-Highway Grade Crossing Action Plan

PRIORITY	HIGH MEDIUM LOW							
STEP #	Safe Roads (SR); Rail-Highway Grade Crossing (R)							
TIMELINE	Short term (1 to 2 years); Medium term (2 to 3 years); Long term (3 to 5 years); Ongoing							
STRATEGY 1:	Implement improvements that eliminate the possibility of conflicts between trains and vehicles at rail highway grade crossings.							

Step #	4 E	Action Step Leader	Description	Output Measure	Output Measure Source	Timeline
SR-R-1.1	Education	INDOT Rail Office	Provide updates to railroad company contacts on planned roadway improvements at or near crossings.	Number of coordinated projects	INDOT Rail Office Records	Short
SR-R-1.2	Engineering	INDOT Rail Office and OTS	Evaluate pavement markings and other low-cost improvements and prioritize hotspots to achieve maximum impact on reducing incidents at crossings.	# of rail crossings treated	INDOT Rail Office Records	Mid term
SR-R-1.3	Engineering	INDOT Rail Office, INLTAP, MPO	Encourage local agencies and INDOT to report to INDOT rail office any rail issues and any needed improvements.	# of active crossings identified # of local agencies reporting	INDOT Rail Office	Short
SR-R-1.4	Engineering	INDOT Rail Office	Work with the railroads to maintain crossings at a reasonable height to prevent semi-tractor trailers from becoming stuck.	 # of crossings main- tained at reasonable height # of complaints from commercial vehicle companies 	Railroad company records ISP Commercial Motor Vehicle Office Records	Long term

Safe Speeds

Speeding Action Plan

PRIORITY	HIGH	MEDIUM	LOW
STEP #	Safe Speeds	(SS); Speedir	ıg (S)

TIMELINE Short term (1 to 2 years); Medium term (2 to 3 years); Long term (3 to 5 years); Ongoing

STRATEGY 1: Implement engineering countermeasures and effective speed management methods to reduce speed-related crashes, fatalities, and serious injuries.

Step #	4 E	Action Step Leader	Description	Output Measure	Output Measure Source	Timeline
SS-S-1.1	Engineering	INDOT and County Engineers Association	Revise the INDOT Design Manual to standardize special markings on rural highways in advance of small towns or other gateway treatments such as geometric changes. Provide guidance on use of speed feedback signs.	# of changes made to Design Manual	Updated Design Manual	Long term
SS-S-1.2	Engineering and Education	INDOT Traffic Engineering Division and INLTAP	Continue implementation of standardized 6" markings or greater width in special cases such as curves to help with nighttime delineation and encourage local agencies to implement as well.	# of 6" markings or greater installed	INDOT Traffic Administration Office, INLTAP Training Records	Short term
SS-S-1.3	Engineering	INDOT and FHWA	Evaluate how INDOT, locals and consultants set speed limits, i.e., context sensitive vs 85 th percentile, and recommend basing speed limits on kinetic energy risk.	Change to INDOT policy on setting speed limits	Change to INDOT policy	Long term
SS-S-1.4	Engineering	INDOT Traffic Engineering Division	Investigate the additional use of the Active Traffic Management System (ATMS) and Variable Speed Limit (VSL) practices on freeway corridors to harmonize speed and prevent weather and queue-related crashes.	Complete the investiga- tions on interstate road segments	Report on ongoing assess- ments on an annual basis	Short term

XIDN.	Step #
APPE	SS-S-1.5
PART 3	SS-S-1.6

Step #	4 E	Action Step Leader	Description	Output Measure	Output Measure Source	Timeline
SS-S-1.5	Engineering	INDOT and FHWA	Identify and implement after evaluation of advanced tools and techniques to reduce speeding.	Develop new policies to address speed on all roadways	Complete development of revised policies and imple- ment	Long term
SS-S-1.6	Engineering and Education	INDOT and INLTAP	Develop guidance to install special in-lane markings in advance of a curve or pedestrian feature such as a trail crossing, i.e., include high visibility markings and warning signs for trail crossings and educate locals on signage and markings.	# of special lane markings installed # of people/agencies trained	Maintenance records from INDOT and LPAs INLTAP Records	Long term
SS-S-1.7	Engineering	INDOT OTS and LPA offices, INLTAP, and MPOs	Educate local agencies and facilitate building and funding local projects that reduce speeding and its consequences.	# of projects with a speed reduction benefit# of people/agencies trained	INDOT OTS LPA records INLTAP Records MPO Records	Short term

STRATEGY 2: Develop and implement countermeasures that educate the public on the dangers of speeding and encourage them to drive at safe speeds.

Step #	4 E	Action Step Leader	Description	Output Measure	Output Measure Source	Timeline
SS-S-2.1	Enforcement	ICJI	Conduct high visibility speed selective enforcement mobilizations/patrols and conduct speed focused operations through local law enforcement and the Indiana State Police.	# of speed enforcement mobilizations or patrols	Highway Safety Annual Report	Ongoing
SS-S-2.2	Education	ICJI, INDOT, Health by Design	Conduct a public awareness campaign on the dangers of speeding and its impact when speeds exceed roadway design limits and in crashes involving vulnerable users.	# of impressions	Highway Safety Annual Report	Long term

Safe Speeds

Work Zone Action Plan

PRIORITY	HIGH	MEDIUM	LOW
STEP #	Safe Speeds	s (SS); Work Z	one (WZ)
TIMELINE	Short term (1	1 to 2 years); M	edium term

STRATEGY 1: Implement measures to improve the design, operations, maintenance, and evaluation of work zones.

Step #	4 E	Action Step Leader	Description	Output Measure	Output Measure Source	Timeline
SS-WZ-1.1	Education	INDOT Construc- tion Division and Work Zone Safety Office	Expand coordination with contractor's associations to solicit feedback on INDOT work zone policies and make changes based on feedback.	# of meetings held	INDOT Records	Long term
SS-WZ-1.2	Engineering	INDOT Work Zone Safety Office	Require uniform certification for design and review of Maintenance of Traffic (MOT) plans and provide work zone design training for permits and local projects.	Certification design # of MOT trainings	INDOT Work Zone Safety Office Records	Long term
SS-WZ-1.3	Engineering	INDOT Work Zone Safety and District Scoping Offices	Facilitate a review of all project MOT plans either through the Work Zone Safety section or at the district scoping and design offices to ensure resources are available.	# of reviews conducted % of contracts where a MOT review took place	Work Zone Safety Office Records	Short term
SS-WZ-1.4	Engineering	Work Zone Safety Office and INDOT Traffic Administration	Reevaluate temporary pavement markings and consider the use of orange tape or black out tape and wet reflective markings.	# of changes made at completion of reevalua- tion process	INDOT Records	Short term

Step #	4 E	Action Step Leader	Description	Output Measure	Output Measure Source	Timeline
SS-WZ-1.5	Engineering	INDOT District Scoping Offices	Improve MOT plans by increasing the use of alternative analysis based on data to select a work zone strategy.	# of projects that include alternative analyses	Work Zone Safety Office Records	Long term
SS-WZ-1.6	Engineering	INDOT Construc- tion Management	Work with contractors to clear all roadway debris before opening lane to traffic.	# of contractors contacted	Work Zone Safety Office Records	Short term
SS-WZ-1.7	Engineering	INDOT design	Expand the use of road closures, temporary signals, and positive protection, and explore new technolo- gies for rapid deployment temporary barrier.	# of closures, temporary signals, positive protec- tions # of new technologies	Work Zone Safety Office Records	Long term
SS-WZ-1.8	Engineering	INDOT Work Zone and Construction Management and Traffic Administra- tion	Reevaluate the detour policy to allow local detours to be used more frequently so that detours are used by the public.	Detour policy changes	Work Zone Safety Office Records	Long term

STRATEGY 2: Decrease work zone-related fatalities through equitable enforcement actions.

Step #	4 E	Action Step Leader	Description	Output Measure	Output Measure Source	Timeline
SS-WZ-2.1	Enforcement	INDOT	Improve work zone speed management and enforcement to reduce the risk of work zone fatalities with the limited enforcement resources; conduct an after-action report/research when a crash occurs in a work zone.	# of work zone crashes # of work zone injuries	ARIES	Short term
SS-WZ-2.2	Education and Enforcement	INDOT Traffic Engineering Division, ICJI – OTS, ISP, Health by Design, Bicycle Indiana, Tow Truck Operators	Promote legislation to allow automated work zone speed enforcement by building a coalition to educate on the use of automated enforcement in the State.	# of participants in the coalition# of legislators reached with education on automated enforcement	Passed legislation	Medium term

Post Crash Care Action Plan

PRIORITY	HIGH	MEDIUM	LOW
STEP #	Post Crash	Care (PCC)	

TIMELINE Short term (1 to 2 years); Medium term (2 to 3 years); Long term (3 to 5 years); Ongoing

STRATEGY 1: Provide education to road users and incident management partners to improve post-crash care.

Step #	4 E	Action Step Leader	Description	Output Measure	Output Measure Source	Timeline
PCC-1.1	Education	INDOT – Public Information Office, ICJI	Develop and conduct a campaign to educate the public on Indiana's Move Over or slow down law for all emergency and public safety vehicles. INDOT coordinate with ICJI on message.	Completion of public outreach # of media impressions # of social media impressions	INDOT Public Information Office	Short term
PCC-1.2	Emergency Response	IN-Time Group, ISP, and ICJI	Work with the In-Time group to develop a virtual version of training, and expand reach of the program to roadways, EMS, tow companies, law enforcement, media, DOT, etc.	# of persons completing virtual In-Time training Virtual training devel- oped	In-Time Annual Report	Long term

STRATEGY 2: Improve post-crash care by promoting greater coordination and cooperation among incident management personnel.

Step #	4 E	Action Step Leader	Description	Output Measure	Output Measure Source	Timeline
PCC-2.1	Emergency Response	ICJI, Traffic Records Coordi- nating Committee, and IDOH	Improve the analysis and sharing of data including crash, trauma registry, and EMS registry, across multiple agencies in severe crash investigations.	# and type of data shared # of agencies reached	TRCC Records	Long term
PCC-2.2	Emergency Response	INDOT, TMC	Deliver prompt and accurate detection and reporting to other agencies of traffic incidents and notification of all responders.	Amount of response time for all responders	TMC Records EMS registry records	Ongoing

Step #	4 E	Action Step Leader	Description	Output Measure	Output Measure Source	Timeline
PCC-2.3	Emergency Response and Enforcement	IN-TIME	Review practices from other states to encourage state and local fire, EMS, law enforcement, and incident response personnel to conduct internal multi-agency after action reviews and reports for crashes.	# of practices identified # of practices adopted	In-Time or TMC Records	Long term
PCC-2.4	Emergency Response	ISP, INDOT, TMC	Expand sharing 911 information on non-interstate (arterial) roadways with INDOT Traffic Management Centers and localities to improve incident manage- ment and clearance while providing the traveling public with incident information.	# of 911 centers sharing information	911 Center reports	Long term
PCC-2.5	Emergency Response and Enforcement	INDOT, Work Zone Safety Office and TMC, IDHS (IN Dept. of Homeland Security), IN-TIME	Finalize localized interstate incident management plans with state and local fire, EMS, law enforce- ment, and incident response personnel.	Completion of incident management plan standards # of local incident management plans	INDOT Work Zone Safety Office	Short term
PCC-2.6	Emergency Medical Response	IDHS and IDOH	Determine how EMS and Trauma Care System collect, integrate, link, and analyze data from all system components.	Linkage established # of linkages identified # of linkages made	IDHS and IDOH Records	Long term